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ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED  

RESILIENCE  TO 

RESURRECTION



Pandemic has made the small and medium business (SMB) 
realize that accelerating payment is the only way to improve 
cashflow. Digitizing the credit-control cycle by using an all-in-
one, invoice-to-cash platform is the way to go

”
“



The smart phone will be the new ‘go-to’ platform

for payments as well as digital services.“ ”



 The sharp rise in the adoption of the Account Aggregator 

framework and the early traction in the 

Open Network Digital Commerce (ONDC) 

will open vast vistas of opportunities
“

”
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COMPANY INFORMATION 

Electronic Payment and Services Private Limited (EPS) was formed in 2011 in Mumbai with a profound vision of emerging as a 
leading provider of technology solu�ons in the retail banking and payments system. EPS is one of the market leaders in providing 
end-to-end outsourcing and managed services for self-serviced terminals, and digital payment services. 

Over a decade, EPS has developed as a payment technology services company that provides cross-channel, full-spectrum 
technology solu�ons across the payments value chain. EPS was launched with an aim to bridge the gap in demand for efficient, 
secure, and technology-driven products and services for the banking industry. 

EPS is backed by prolific investors from financial services and payments space; and also having eminent Board of Directors (BoD) 
and advisors, who are former execu�ves of Reserve Bank of India (RBI), Na�onal Payments Corpora�on of India (NPCI) and major 
banks. EPS manages around 12,000 ATMs spread across India, and offers ATM outsourcing services and 24x7 monitoring services. 

EPS aced in delivering results, reliability, and dependability, having successfully deployed ATMs in urban and rural loca�ons 
across India. EPS, which has serviced major leading banks, has established a leadership posi�on as a self-serviced terminals 
transac�on processor, and enables banks and financial ins�tutes to embark on a payments transforma�on journey by 
streamlining payment processing, avoiding financial slippages due to deficient reconcilia�on, reducing risks due to ever 
increasing fraud sophis�ca�on and improving customer centricity. It has expanded its digital product por�olio to cater to the 
changing needs of banks.

EPS' por�olio of solu�ons include – 

- Payment card life cycle management

- EFT switch

- Fraud Risk Management

- Enterprise Reconcilia�on 

- Excep�on Management 

- Transac�on switching for mobile-based instant payment mechanisms such as UPI, IMPS and AePS. 

EPS aims to direct unique efforts towards making important technical as well as technological contribu�ons to the advancement 
of industry. Innova�on-led EPS is all set to transform digital customer experiences for major banks through its advanced 
solu�ons. EPS has digi�zed all the key areas of self-serviced terminal opera�ons which include: 

- Cash Management

- Reconcilia�on

- Remote Monitoring

- EJ (Electronic Journal) Pulling 

- Content Management

The automa�on proved valuable during the pandemic when EPS could deliver uninterrupted services to its customers 24x7. 
Technology has guided the company to provide seamless, safe and secure mobile-based payments through UPI, IMPS, NETC, and 
QR-code, which have been posi�oned as a key contender in the emerging payments space. 

EPS provides a best-in-class PCI-DSS cer�fied Transac�on Switching Solu�on, which can drive all industry standard front-end 
payment devices. It has achieved cer�fica�on of EPS Switch (EPSNet) on NPCI's RuPay interface for ATM shared network, 
infrastructure services for ATM deployment and monitoring, transac�on switching and processing, interchange gateway for 
Electronic Journal management. It is also an NPCI approved ASP (Applica�on Service Provider) for its payment methods. 

EPS has notched some wins and established valuable creden�als in the           
non-ATM space and is building capabili�es in emerging areas of 
Payment Technology (PayTech) and Regulatory Technology 
(Regtech). Today, it has emerged as one of the forerunners 
among the B2B payment transac�on processors. We are 
building capabili�es in emerging areas of Regulatory 
Technology and Payment Pla�orms for B2B requirements, and 
our mission is to democra�ze payment technology knowledge 
across the ecosystem.

EPS is also a�emp�ng a big foray into building knowledge society 
in the form of – EPS Educa�on- and has partnered with Dr. 
Babasaheb Ambedkar Technology University (DBATU) to offer an elec�ve 
course in payments technology for the engineering students.



To be a leading provider of banking and
retail terminals (ATM/PoS) by providing
cost effec�ve banking and transac�on
related services and solu�ons. To establish
a dependable electronic payment network
and be a differen�ator in providing
electronic payment services

VISION

MISSION

To be the leading provider of technology 
solu�ons in the Retail Banking and 
Payments System
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To understand, determine and deliver what our 
clients need, with a high standard of customer 
service and professionalism.

We believe that trust and respect are
essential for teamwork.

We strive to excel always.

We value every member of our team and 
encourage their development.

We are committed to a high standard of integrity.

Service

R
We believe in building strong relationships 
through transparency and fairness in
all our dealings.

Relationship

Trust

Integrity

Value People

Excellence
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CORE VALUES
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Key Services and Solu�ons 

ATM Outsourcing Services: 

Our por�olio of end-to-end outsourced services for self-service terminals provide complete round of services which not only 
helps in iden�fying sites and deploy machines at op�mal loca�ons, but also take care of managing the ATM network, which 
includes management of the EJ (electronic journal) and bank’s EFT switch, and coordina�on with cash replenishment agencies 
(CRAs) for cash lifecycle management. 

Our clients rely on our exper�se and experience to build scalable ATM networks and to improve opera�onal efficiency through 
con�nuous online monitoring of vital indicators. They rely on us to provide industry best prac�ces, benefits of latest technologies 
and compe��ve advantage for their ATM banking channel. 

Benefits to Banks:  

• End-to-end outsourced ATM services under one roof

• Increased ATM Availability  

• Increased ATM Throughput  

• Reduced outage �me 24x7x365

• Monitoring and Incident Management 

• Low number of FLM and SLM calls 

• Minimal cash-out instances 

• Improved customer experience scores

• ATM site infrastructure outsourcing services 
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ATM Managed Services 

Our ATM managed services team, with their proven skills and industry background, ensures be�er up�me of ATM for customers - 
banks – for 24x7 and coordinate with mul�ple suppor�ng agencies to maximise customer services by adop�ng smart 
technological analysis with using relevant social and geological data to boost performance and ensure maximum availability of 
serviceable terminals. 

Our round the clock services support banks’ management in a way so that they can focus on core business ac�vi�es and rely on 
our service capabili�es fully.

Benefits to Banks:

• Supports ATM opera�ons department to achieve customer focused KPIs

• Reduces the impact of loss of revenue and customer dissa�sfac�on by unsuccessful transac�ons

• Achieves high availability of the ATM machines and maximise the up�me 

• Ensures �mely and accurate reconcilia�on of transac�ons and resolu�on of disputes on �me

• Provides early alerts and ac�ons on incidents

• Enables �mely escala�on of  issues

• Following up with the suppor�ng service providers and maintains records of the down�me for reference.



Digital Payments 

We offer a wide range of solu�ons in payments, which give banks compe��ve edge. 

Some of our key solu�ons in digital payments are as follows: 

1.  EFT Switching: Acquire, process, clear and se�le credit and debit card payment transac�ons from ATM, POS, and 
e-Commerce across any network in real �me. 

2.  Card Management System: Card Lifecycle management backed by comprehensive repor�ng and audit trails across design, 
issuance, processing, and administra�on. 

3.  Switching for NPCI Operated Payment Systems: Transac�on processing for AePS, IMPS, UPI, NETC and BPPS. 

4.  Aadhaar Data Vault: Tokeniza�on solu�on that ensures compliance with UIDAI guidelines. 

5.  Enterprise Fraud Risk Management: Unified Fraud Risk Management across mobile banking, internet banking, cards, 
mobile wallets, digital wallets, payment gateways. The solu�on proac�vely pre-empts, detects, and prevent frauds. It 
enables reduc�on in false posi�ves, detec�on of ever-increasing sophis�cated fraud pa�erns quicker case resolu�on 

6.  Enterprise Reconcilia�on Management: Automates the en�re lifecycle of reconcilia�ons across all retail payment 
channels, like ATM, POS, UPI, IMPS, BBPS, NETC, NEFT, RTGS, VISA, Mastercard Networks, Mobile Wallets, GL valida�on, 
NOSTRO, etc.
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©EPSTAR : ATM Automa�on Excellence    

EPSTAR is a modular, scalable, secure, API connected integrated web and mobile enabled ATM management pla�orm developed 
by EPS which serves end-to-end needs of complete ATM outsourced services. This monitoring tool is a single source of forma�on 
that captures, manages and distributes real-�me informa�on to all stakeholders including customer, corporate or field engineer 
in a secure and controlled manner. 

The solu�on helps to overcome ATM challenges like unreconciled funds and associated frauds; beer (UX) user experience and 
(CX) customer experience, real me ATM journals, traceability, record and health status of each terminal, the real-me dashboards 
with ATM up�me & down�me, ageing queue and beer control of users’ access and rights. EPSTAR modules have 24*7 support 
system, seamless and secure connec�vity, real �me view, data transparency & availability, automated workflows which have 
resulted in opera�onal efficiency 

EPSTAR manages the end-to-end performance of ATM channel at customer, regional, func�onal and personnel level. For global 
presence, the journey has been ini�ated to move from On-premises to SaaS based model, the integra�on with financial systems 
and data mart. It will provide 360 degree view for managing ATM opera�ons in a more construc�ve, efficient and effec�ve 
manner to make strategic decisions internally by the EPS management and clients across boundaries.

©EPSTAR  Modules   Salient Features

©EPSolve  

Incident Management • ATM health monitoring using switch feeds

 • Ticke�ng for FLM/SLM and other incidents

 • Auto �cket dispatch to OEMs and Vendors

 • Automated reports and trend analysis

©EPSupply

Cash Management • Cash forecast based on historical data and parameters. 

 • Auto genera�on and dispatch of cash indents at cash branch, CRA, ATM and 
custom level. 

 • Indent revision within seconds. 

 • Automated Reports and Trend Analysis

©EPSe�le  

Reconcilia�on • 2-way, 3-way and 4-way reconcilia�on

 • Excep�on Management – Overage and Shortage Reports

©EPSmart

EJ & Content Management • EJ Pulling through encrypted distributed channels

 • Content distribu�on and content management

EPScru�ny

Customer Dispute Management • Customer dispute management

 • Repor�ng,  ageing and historical data management

EPSurvey

Cash, Site and Asset Audit • Assign, Schedule, Monitor – the audit ac�vi�es ‘on the move’

 • Real-�me data sync between field team and Central Compliance team

 • Offline mode database sync for remote reloca�ons

 • Cash  Audit, Site  Audit  and  Asset  Audit on the go

 • Centralized repor�ng and excep�on management
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

Dear Shareholders, 

My warm gree�ng to all of you!

With near normalcy all around, the impact of one of the deadliest pandemics, that lingered �ll the beginning of the year, 

seems to be petering out. No words could express my sorrow for the anguish caused by the loss of lives during the pandemic. 

The last financial year was filled with frenzy, where the black swan event as well as geopoli�cal tensions caused supply chain 

disrup�ons leading to vola�lity in the prices of commodi�es, and unstable economic condi�ons.

As the dust se�les, and a brighter picture of economic ac�vi�es emerges, I sincerely believe we are standing firmly at the 

threshold of a �me where growth opportuni�es are coming our way. 

In this report, I am pleased to make a few comments about the FY 2021-22.

Being Consistently Profitable: Like in the previous two years, this year too, your Company has closed the books with profits. I 

am happy to report that during the financial year 2021-22, your Company achieved a sharp rise in the financial journey, by 

making key strategic decisions at the right �me. Our combined efforts have resulted in revenues of INR in 000s 3,425,178/- 

against the previous year’s INR in 000s 3,429,913/-, with profits of INR in 000s 253,152/-. The financial year ended on a 

posi�ve note, which is largely backed by financial dis�nc�on, opera�onal excellence, technological efficiency, kickstar�ng 

new ini�a�ves, teamwork, and cross-departmental collabora�on. 

Resurrec�ng Growth: During FY 2021-22, we navigated the crisis induced by the pandemic and resurrected growth. I would 

like to thank all our stakeholders, including shareholders, customers, employees, partners, bankers, and associates whose 

boundless faith in us provided the necessary thrust for the next level of growth. Your Company’s management had set its 

sights high on enhancing capabili�es in processing digital payments to accelerate financial inclusion. During the last 10 years 

of providing payment technology services to India’s major public sector banks, we have moved EPS to a growth trajectory. 

Your Company has been managing around 12,000 ATMs in the country, and many of our customers – who are large banks – 

have consistently ranked us above our peers for the predictability of services and fair business prac�ces. This has been 

possible due to the Company’s con�nued investments in technology to augment efficiency in service delivery. 

Besides enhancing efficiency in service delivery, technology investments also improved our market compe��veness. This is 

one of the reasons why we received from a major PSU bank the mandate to manage around 2200 ATMs spread across the 

country. 



Ready for the Next Run! In the next five years, we strongly see that the market for managed services for self-services 

terminals in India is expected to grow significantly owing to the rise in the ATMs, cash dispensing, and cash recycling 

machines, especially in the rural areas. India is one of the key contribu�ng na�ons in the global ATM markets. 

As per reports, the global ATM market is expected to grow from $19.94 billion in 2021 to $22.08 billion in 2022 at a compound 

annual growth rate (CAGR) of 10.7%. The market is expected to grow to $28.82 billion in 2026 at a compound annual growth 

rate (CAGR) of 6.9%. We are well posi�oned to capitalize upon the opportunity in this part of the world. 

Preparing for Our Next Phase of Growth: India has maintained its pole posi�on in global digital payments. During the year, 

UPI processed more than 46 billion transac�ons amoun�ng to over Rs 84.17 trillion as against the previous year’s 22.28 billion 

transac�ons, amoun�ng to Rs 41.03 trillion. Both in volume and value terms, digital payments have doubled in just a year, 

indica�ng the meteoric rise in the adop�on of digital payments. 

In the next couple of years, an addi�onal 100 million people will join to 

strengthen the digital economy in India. The smartphone will be the new 

‘go-to’ pla�orm for payments as well as digital services. Hence, the 

second phase of your Company’s growth will inevitably come from 

mobile-based real-�me payments and its adjacent business space i.e., 

digital financial services. 

In the year following the pandemic, more and more businesses are 

warming to digital B2B transac�ons. The introduc�on of e-Invoice will 

pave way for digital B2B payments and strengthen the founda�on of 

digital financial services for SMEs. The sharp rise in the adop�on of the 

Account Aggregator framework and the early trac�on in the Open 

Network Digital Commerce (ONDC) will open vast vistas of opportuni�es 

for companies such as ours. We are exploring strategic opportuni�es in 

these areas to grow revenue. 

Digital trust and security occupy a central role in a digital economy. 

Hence, we will con�nue to do whatever it takes to raise the profile of our 

company as the champions of digital trust and security

All in all, we are excited by India’s emergence as a global front-runner in digital infrastructure and our growth aspira�ons are 

aligned with it.

Embracing Purpose in Business: Purpose ma�ers in the way we do business. The human side of our organiza�on came to the 

fore in the face of the angst and anguish spelled by Covid-19. Human angle prevailed over every aspect of day-to-day business 

decision-making during the pandemic. We scaled up our community engagement and provided hospitaliza�on support and 

access to the Covid care centre. Over 1000 families reaped the benefits of our Covid-19 relief ini�a�ves. This included not only 

the families of our employees but also the families of members of our business network. In June 2021, we organized one of 

the biggest in-house vaccina�on camps, where more than 1000 people took the jab including our employees and their 

families, partners, vendors, and other EPS associates. 

Amidst the onslaught of layoffs, pay cuts, and mass downsizing, we decided to widen the circle of human obliga�on and 

protected the jobs of all our employees, security personnel, and housekeeping staff. Our field personnel distributed free 

masks and sani�zers to people visi�ng various ATMs. We had set up a specialized support system, a Covid Task Force including 

representa�ves from all teams within EPS and members of the senior management personnel. Throughout the crisis, the task 

force was in regular touch with employees to ensure their well-being. We organized a three-month-long virtual campaign to 

recognize the efforts of “Covid Warriors” – our employees spread across the country – who acted as soldiers of humanity and 

led the fight against the invisible enemy pu�ng others before themselves. 

Building Business through People: Covid-19 has turned the world upside down. Every aspect of our lives has been affected. 

But people con�nue to remain the most invaluable asset of every business. We are proud of our people and how they 

con�nue to contribute to the success of our company. 

 The second phase of 

your Company’s growth 

will inevitably come 

from mobile-based 

real-time payments and 

its adjacent business 

space i.e., digital 

financial services

“

”
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The pandemic was not only the catalyst for reimagining the workplace, but it has also prompted a change in how we work. Our 

leaders became flexible and empathe�c like never before, as their teams balanced varied commitments. The pandemic 

forced the leaders to communicate more with the teams, which resulted in higher engagement levels and mo�va�on leading 

to enhanced team produc�vity. 

As we par�ally exited from the pandemic, we did detailed planning to safely reopen offices, and provide alterna�ves for our 

employees to commute and travel without transmi�ng or contrac�ng an infec�on. Even today, we con�nue to allow most of 

our employees to work from home as we  gradually return to the hybrid mode of working. 

We will con�nue to invest in our people and give them opportuni�es to realize their full poten�al. Going forward, the 

following three pillars will guide us in our people prac�ces and help us to make our organiza�on a workplace of choice

• Happy workforce: Pu�ng the right talent in the right roles at the right �me to ensure work-life balance, fulfilling 

experience, and physical and mental wellbeing

• Empowered employees: An error-honouring work environment, which is conducive to taking new ini�a�ves and 

fostering innova�on 

• Leadership Development: Developing future leaders who will exhibit the right behaviours, act as role models, and 

inspire others 

Our women employees have made an invaluable contribu�on to our growth. We have revisited our gender diversity goals and 

are sharply focusing on increasing the representa�on of women in new appointments, and leadership pipeline development. 

Openness, trust, and transparency have been the key a�ributes of our workplace. We con�nue to organize open-door 

sessions, training programs, and engagement programs for our employees to engage on a variety of topics. Throughout the 

year, we con�nued to promote a speak-up culture in which our people feel encouraged to not only share ideas but also raise 

issues and concerns.  

Going Far and Beyond in Good Governance:  Ethics and fair prac�ces lay the strong founda�on for building businesses that 

can weather all storms. We con�nue to be fuelled by our belief that our relentless pursuit of a ’values-based’ approach to 

business ethics and compliance will give us an advantage in the marketplace in the long term. 

Conclusion: We had a solid year. The outlook is posi�ve. The condi�ons are favourable, and the business is well posi�oned to 

con�nue to prosper into the future. I look forward to the years ahead with op�mism and confidence. 

Thank you

Mani Mamallan 
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LIST OF LENDERS

1) IDFC First Bank Limited
 C-32 G Block, Naman Chambers, BKC, Mumbai - 400051.

2) Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited
 12, BKC, C-12, G Block, Banda (East), Mumbai - 400051.

3) Bajaj Finance Limited 
 4th Floor, Bajaj Finserv Corporate Office, Off Pune-Ahmednagar Road, Viman Nagar, Pune - 411014.

4) ICICI Bank Limited 
 ICICI Bank Towers, Bandra Kurla Complex, Mumbai – 400051.

5) Tata Capital Financial Services Limited 
 12 th Floor, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park, Senapa� Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400013.

6) Utkarsh Small Finance Bank Limited 
 S-24/1-2, First Floor, Mahavir Nagar, Orderly Bazar, Varanasi - 221002.
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GOVERNANCE  REPORT 

In today’s digital world, Corporate Governance must ensure organiza�onal resilience while striking a balance between the 
interests of a company’s many stakeholders, such as shareholders, management, employees, customers, suppliers, financiers, 
government, and the community at large. Corporate governance, as per benchmarked prac�ce, is an ethically driven business 
process that is commi�ed to the values aimed at enhancing an organisa�on’s capacity to create wealth.

Thus, it forms one of the significant pillars of any efficient and growing organisa�on. At EPS, good governance and opera�onal 
efficiency form the cornerstone to become a differen�ated payment technology services provider. The Company’s philosophy of 
corporate governance is founded upon a rich legacy of fairness, accountability, ethics, and transparency. 

Some of the salient ac�ons of our Corporate Governance in the last fiscal year are as illustrated below: 

1)  Our well-defined processes and systems enabled us to seamlessly transi�on to “Work from Home” even before the 
Government announced lockdown. 

2)  We covered our en�re workforce and their families under the health insurance scheme “Corona Kavach” 

3)  We arranged the vaccina�on of people in our en�re business ecosystem, which comprise employees and their en�re 
families, partners, and suppliers to strengthen the fight against the pandemic. 

 It is needless to men�on that our risk and governance prac�ces had created a bo�om-line impact helping the company turn 
PAT posi�ve in the pandemic year, which lent a crippling blow to the economy. The func�oning of the Governance, Risk and 
Compliance (GRC) department as a well-oiled machine has increased the resilience of the company and mi�gated the risks 
to the possible extent and enhanced produc�vity. Our GRC framework is compa�ble with the domes�c standards and 
industry best prac�ces. We ensure to make �mely disclosures and share relevant  informa�on regarding our financials and 
performance, as well as the leadership and governance. 

 A three-layer defence mechanism characterizes our risk and governance framework. All the departments and processes are 
governed by the policies and processes laid down under the Governance Framework: 

 a) Statutory Compliances: All applicable statutory compliances in our areas of opera�ons are managed and overseen 
through EPSafe – a web-based so�ware that automates risk monitoring and compliance management. 

 b)  Assurance: A third party conducts the tes�ng of ICFR (Internal Control over Financial Repor�ng) and opera�onal 
controls. We review and revise SOPs (standard opera�ng procedure) and control library on a periodic basis to keep the 
processes aligned and op�mize governance and assurance. 

 c)  Internal Audit: We conduct internal audits to review overall performance. Audit observa�ons are closed with risk 
mi�ga�on and process improvements. Internal Auditor is approved by the Audit commi�ee and audit reports are 
reviewed by Board.

  We have completed various cer�fica�ons such as ISO 27001-2013 for Informa�on Security, ISO 9001:2015 for Quality 
Management Systems and PCI DSS for The Payment Card Industry Data Security. Our structure, policies, processes, 
and systems are based on these standards. This not only gives immense confidence and comfort to our customers and 
partners but also posi�ons us ahead of our compe�tors. We ensure �mely renewals of our cer�fica�ons and perform 
surveillance audits to strictly adhere to the standards. For the Financial Year 2021 – 2022, we have complied with all 
the relevant provisions of the legisla�on covered above and as applicable from �me to �me. All the teams within the 
organising, handling specialised func�onali�es, support for the compliance of the relevant regula�ons by providing 
�mely informa�on and extending connec�vity. 

Various commi�ees and sub commi�ees, and policies are a part of Corporate Governance such as: 

 • Audit and Risk Board Sub-Commi�ee 

 • Finance Board Sub-Commi�ee

 • Business and Opera�ons Board Sub-Commi�ee

 • Compensa�on Board Sub-Commi�ee

All legal documenta�on is prepared, entered, and executed by the company, post careful legal reviewing, to safeguard company’s 
legal interests. At EPS, we aim to accomplish the stature of an organisa�on that people can trust. We, thus, con�nue to strive 
towards achieving the gold standard in Corporate Governance that takes care of all stake holders and makes EPS a respected 
organiza�on. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members of,
ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED  

thYour Directors have pleasure in presen�ng the 11  Annual Report of Electronic Payment and Services Private Limited (“EPS” or 
“the Company”) together with the Audited Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2022.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Par�culars  Year Ended on Year Ended on   Year Ended on  Year Ended on 
 31st March 2022 31st March 2021 31st March 2022 31st March 2021 
 (INR 000’s)  (INR 000’s) (INR 000’s) (INR 000’s)

  (Standalone) (Standalone) (Consolidated) (Consolidated)

Total Revenue 3,425,178        3,429,913 - 3,430,486 

Expenditure 2,977,127  3,034,322  - 3,036,740 

Profit / (Loss) before Deprecia�on 448,051  395,591  - 393,746 

Less: Deprecia�on 399,647  390,233  -         390,233 

Profit / (Loss) before Taxes 48,404  5,358  -                3,513 

Add / Less: Taxa�on               - -    -                         -   

Add Deferred Tax 204,748 - - -

Profit /(Loss)A�er Tax 253,152          5,358 - 3,513 

REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS OPERATIONS

During the year, the Company recorded a total revenue of INR in ‘000s 3,425,178/- as compared to INR in ‘000s 3,429,913/- in the 
previous financial year. The Company has earned the net profit a�er tax of INR in ‘000s 253,152/- during the year as compared to 
the net profit a�er tax of INR in ‘000s 5,358/- during previous financial year.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

During the year, Electronic Payment Australia Pty. Ltd. (“EPAPL”) - Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the Company; was liquidated vide 
the deregistra�on approval from Australian Securi�es and Investments Commission (ASIC) dated 06th September 2021. Hence, 
the consolida�on of accounts is not applicable to the Company for FY 2021-22. 

GENERAL REVIEW ON THE STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

The Company is an ATM opera�on and services company, incorporated on 29th September 2011 and commenced its business in 
June 2012.  The Company was formed to provide ATM management opera�ons and services to banks. 

Currently, the Company manages approximately 12,000 ATMs in all developed areas as well as suppor�ng such business 
ini�a�ves in remote areas too. The Company also offers Card Management Systems, EFT Switching Services, Enterprise 
Reconcilia�ons Services and Fraud Risk Management to Financial Ins�tu�ons.

DISCLOSURE ON CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

There is no change in the nature of business of the Company.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of your Company, a�er considering the relevant circumstances, has decided that it would be prudent, not 
to recommend any Dividend for the year under review.

PARTICULARS REGARDING ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING 
AND OUTGOINGS

The informa�on pursuant to Sec�on 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014, with regard to conserva�on of energy, technology absorp�on and foreign exchange earnings and outgo are given in 
the “Annexure I” enclosed.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company meets the threshold criteria established under sec�on 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 for CSR ac�vi�es and 
was required to spend INR in ‘000s 1,078/- on CSR ac�vi�es during the year under review.  Accordingly, the contribu�on of INR in 
‘000s 376/- was made towards the Covid vaccina�on for the persons other than the employees and their families towards CSR 
ac�vity and the excess contribu�on made during previous financial year i.e., INR in ‘000s 1,025/- shall be set off against the 
balance CSR obliga�on. Hence, the excess contribu�on of INR in ‘000s 323/- made during FY 2021-22, is proposed to be set off 
against the requirement to spend on CSR ac�vity up to immediate succeeding three financial years, if applicable subject to 
approval of the Board of the Directors.  

Further, pursuant to Sec�on 135(9) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not required to formulate a separate CSR 
Commi�ee un�l it meets the prescribed criteria. Hence, the Board of Directors of the Company shall be responsible for 
monitoring and ensuring the compliances rela�ng to the CSR provisions.

The Annual Report on CSR ac�vi�es is appended as “Annexure II” to the Directors’ Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Board of Directors of the Company pursuant to the requirements of Sec�on 134 (3) (c) and 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 
2013, hereby confirm:

1) That in the prepara�on of the annual accounts, the applicable accoun�ng standards have been followed and there has 
been no material departure.

2) That the Directors had selected accoun�ng policies and applied consistently, and the Directors made judgments and 
es�mates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the statement of affairs of the Company as at 
31st March 2022 and of the profit and loss of the Company for the year ended on that date;

3) That the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accoun�ng records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preven�ng and 
detec�ng fraud and other irregulari�es. 

4) That the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

5) They had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems 
were adequate and opera�ng effec�vely.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The Company has not given any loans or provided guarantees and securi�es, as applicable pursuant to the provision of Sec�on 
186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

DISCLOSURES OF AMOUNTS, IF ANY, TRANSFER TO ANY RESERVES

It is not proposed to carry any amount to any reserves from the profits of the Company. Hence, disclosure under Sec�on 134(3)(j) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 is not required. 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED 
BETWEEN THE ENDS OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENT RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE 
REPORT

During the year under review, Electronic Payment Australia Pty. Ltd. – Australia based Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the Company 
was liquidated vide the deregistra�on approval from Australian Securi�es and Investments Commission (ASIC) dated 06th 
September 2021. 

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS / COURTS / TRIBUNAL IMPACTING THE 
GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATION IN FUTURE 

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts / Tribunal which would impact the going concern status 
of the Company and its future opera�ons. Hence, the disclosure pursuant to Rule 8(5)(vii) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is 
not required.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS PURSUANT TO RULE 8 (5) (viii) OF COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

The Company’s Internal Financial Control Systems are adequate and opera�ng effec�vely in all material respects and are 
commensurate with the size of its business opera�ons. 
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PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES MADE PURSUANT TO SECTION 188 
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

During the year, there were no material related party contracts entered by the Company that may have poten�al conflict of 
interest with the Company at large and all the transac�ons were at arm’s length and in ordinary course of business. The 
remunera�on being paid to the related par�es are as approved by the Board of Directors in Board Mee�ng held on 26th 
November 2021 and by Shareholders in Extra Ordinary General Mee�ng held on 22nd December 2021 of the Company. Hence, 
the disclosure in Form AOC-2 in terms of Sec�on 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not required. All related party transac�ons as 
per AS-18 are men�oned in the Note No. 28 to the Financial Statements.

ANNUAL RETURN

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide Sec�on 23 of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, has removed the provision of 
enclosing the extract of annual return in form MGT-9 with the Directors’ report. 

Accordingly, pursuant to subsequent amendment to Sec�on 92(3) and 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Return 
for the financial year ended on 31st March 2022, shall be placed on the website of the Company at h�ps://www.electronicpay.in/ 
company-annual-return/.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Electronic Payment Australia Pty. Ltd. – Australia based Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the Company was liquidated vide the 
deregistra�on approval from Australian Securi�es and Investments Commission (ASIC) dated 06th September 2021.  All the 
mandatory filings were completed by the Company with the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) vide its acknowledgment email dated 
18th November 2021. Hence, the Company does not have any Subsidiary Company as on 31st March 2022 and there is no 
requirement to annex AOC-1 under sec�on 129(3) of the Companies Act 2013.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, the Compulsory Conver�ble Preference Shares (“CCPS”) of the Company held by Asia Par�cipa�on 
B. V. were converted into Equity Shares as follows:

• 2,500,525 Series C- CCPS of Asia Par�cipa�on B.V were converted into 42,829 Equity Shares on 30th August, 2021 as per the 
terms of the Conversion Mechanism of the Share Subscrip�on Agreement dated 12th May 2015 entered by and between 
Aavishkaar India II Company Limited, Aavishkaar Goodwell India Microfinance Development Company II Limited, 
Aavishkaar Venture Management Services Private Limited, Asia Par�cipa�ons B.V, the Company and its Promoters.

• 58,635 Series B- CCPS of Asia Par�cipa�on B.V were converted into 58,635 Equity Shares on 10th December, 2021 as per the 
terms of the Conversion Mechanism of the of the Share Subscrip�on Agreement dated 20th November 2013 entered by and 
between Asia Par�cipa�ons B.V, the Company and its Promoters.

 The details of the Share Capital are given under Note No. 3 to the Financial Statements of the Company.

EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS MADE 
BY THE AUDITORS AND THE PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY IN THEIR REPORTS ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

There were no qualifica�ons, reserva�ons or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their report on the Financial Statements.

The provisions of Sec�on 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 rela�ng to submission of Secretarial Audit Report is not applicable to 
the Company for the year under review.

COMPANY’S POLICIES RELATING TO DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION & 
DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES

The provisions of Sec�on 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 rela�ng to Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee are not 
applicable to the Company, hence the Company has not devised any policy rela�ng to appointment of Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel, payment of Managerial Remunera�on, Directors Qualifica�ons, Independence of Directors and other related ma�ers 
as provided under Sec�on 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL APPOINTED OR RESIGNED DURING THE YEAR

During the period under review, there were changes in the composi�on of Directors of the Company.

Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai (DIN: 00606290) resigned from his directorship as an Investor Nominee Director represen�ng Aavishkaar 
India II Company Limited (“AICL”) w.e.f. 1st April 2021. Pursuant to which Mr. Anurag Agrawal (DIN: 02385780) was appointed as 
an Investor Nominee Director represen�ng AICL w.e.f. 13th July 2021.

AUDITORS

M/s. DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP, CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS, Statutory Auditors of the Company having, firm registra�on 
number 117366W/W1000-18 situated at Indiabulls Finance Centre, Tower 3, 27th-32nd Floor, Senapa� Bapat Marg, Elphinstone 
Road (West), Mumbai-400 013, have completed their term as the Statutory Auditors of the Company. 
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Accordingly, M/s. Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, Chartered Accountants, is proposed to be appointed as the 
Statutory Auditors of the Company, in the upcoming Annual General Mee�ng for a period of Five (5) years as per the provisions of 
Sec�on 139 of the Companies Act 2013.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sec�on 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, is not 
applicable to the Company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Pursuant to disclosure under Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules,2014, 
details of the employee who is in receipt of remunera�on aggrega�ng to INR in ‘000s . 10,200/-per annum or more, are as 
follows:

SR. NO PARTICULARS DETAILS

1 Name Mr. Mani Mamallan

2 Designa�on Chairman & Managing Director

3 Joining Date 1st July 2012

4 CTC Per Annum INR in ‘000s 25,000/-

5 Remunera�on received during the year INR in ‘000s 14,609/-

6 Qualifica�on B. Sc Zoology and PGDPM (IT)

7 DOB 27th March 1961

8 % of Equity Shares NIL

9 Last employment C-Edge Technologies Limited

10 Rela�ves of any Director or Manager No

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Mr. Rama Subramaniam Gandhi is the Independent Director of the Company and as an annual compliance, the declara�on 
confirming the compliance of the condi�ons of the independence s�pulated in the Sec�on 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, has 
been submi�ed by him to the Company. 

Further to note that, the Company being a Private Limited Company, the provisions of Sec�on 149 pertaining to the appointment 
of Independent Directors are not applicable and that the appointment has been made in order to comply with the Shareholders’ 
Agreement signed between the Company and its Shareholders.

BOARD MEETING

During the Financial Year 2021-22, the Board met four (4) �mes on 13-07-2021, 28-08-2021, 26-11-2021 and 25-03-2022. 
Further during the Financial Year 2021-22, the Board Sub-Commi�ee Members met to conduct their mee�ngs on the dates as 
men�oned below:

 • Audit and Risk Board Sub-Commi�ee Mee�ngs: - 13-07-2021, 28-08-2021, 26-11-2021 and 25-03-2022

 • Finance Board Sub-Commi�ee: - 13-07-2021, 28-08-2021, 26-11-2021 and 25-03-2022

 • Business and Opera�ons Board Sub-Commi�ee: - 13-07-2021, 26-11-2021 and 25-03-2022

 • Compensa�on Board Sub-Commi�ee: - 13-07-2021, 28-08-2021, 26-11-2021 and 25-03-2022

Given the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic, to maintain social distancing norms and ensure smooth conduc�on of the mee�ng; all the 
Board Sub Commi�ee Mee�ngs, Board of Directors’ Mee�ng and Shareholders’ Mee�ngs held during the under-review period, 
were conducted through Audio-Video Conferencing Facility, adhering to guidelines/circulars, compliance relaxa�on norms 
granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”), �me to �me.

SEXUAL HARRASSMENT POLICY

The Company has devised a Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the 
Workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on & Redressal) Act, 2013 with the proper composi�on of members. The policy highlights are 
regularly flashed on the desktops of all the employees to ensure the adherence to the policy. An Internal Complaint Commi�ee 
(“ICC”) has been set up in compliance with the said Act which also includes an external member. The Human Resource 
department of the Company also ensures to conduct regular training sessions on the Company’s Sexual Harassment Policy. The 
policy has also been displayed on the Company’s website www.electronicpay.in. 

During the year under review, no complaints pertaining to sexual harassment of women employees were reported to the 
Commi�ee.
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CODE OF CONDUCT 

The Company has a comprehensive Code of Conduct (“the Code”) applicable to all the stakeholders. The Board of Directors had 
reviewed the Code of Conduct and the copy of the Code is available on the Company’s website www.electronicpay.in. 

DISCLOSURE OF THE AMOUNT RECEIVED FROM ITS DIRECTORS/RELATIVES OF DIRETOR AS A LOAN DURING THE YEAR 
UNDER REVIEW

The Company has not received any amount from its Directors or Rela�ves.

DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy pursuant to Sec�on 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 
and overseen by Mr. Mani Mamallan, Managing Director of the Company. The forma�on of the Audit Commi�ee Sec�on 177(1) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable to the Company. The policy has also been displayed on the Company’s website 
www.electronicpay.in. 

The Company has also provided adequate safeguard against vic�miza�on of employees and the Directors who express their 
concerns. 

COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has complied with the applicable  Secretarial  Standards. 

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS

The Shareholders of the Company in the Annual General Mee�ng held on 12th August 2014 had approved the Employee Stock 
Op�on Scheme (ESOP), 2014. In this connec�on the following are the disclosures required as per Rule 12 of the Companies 
(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014. 

(a) Op�ons Granted during the year: - Nil

(b) Op�ons Vested during the year: - Nil

(c) Op�ons Exercised during the year: - Nil

(d) The Total Number of Shares arising as a result of Exercise of Op�on: - Nil

(e) Op�ons Lapsed/ Forfeited during the year: - Nil

(f) The exercise Price: - INR 10/- per share

(g) Varia�on of terms of Op�ons: - Refer below table for Varia�on of terms of in the Op�ons Granted

(h) Money realized by exercise of Op�ons: - Nil

(i) Total Number of op�ons in force:- 17,788

(j) Total Number of op�ons available for grant- 962

(k) Employee wise details of op�ons granted to; -

 i. key managerial Personnel-None

 ii. any other employee who receives a grant of op�ons in any one year of op�on amoun�ng to five percent or more of 
op�ons granted during that year.-List of employees captured below.

  ESOP 2014 – Granted in September 2014

Name of Grantee No of op�ons granted

Mr. Chandrasekaran 4500

Mr. Manohar Bhoi 4500

Mr. Prakash Joshi 4500

Mr. Thyagrajan 1500

Mr. Murali Sharma 1500

Mr. Amit Kadam 150

Ms. Supriya Shukla 150*

Total 16,800
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Details Grant Date Number of op�ons  Ves�ng Dates  Revised Exercise Dates
  vestedless lapsed 

First Alloca�on 5th September 2014 16,650 4th September 2015 12th February 2025

Second Alloca�on 13th January 2016 650 13th September 2018 12th February 2025

  263 13th September 2019 12th February 2025

  225 13th February 2020 12th February 2025

ESOP 2014 – Granted in January 2016

Name of Grantee No of op�ons granted

Mr. Farroukh Kolah 250 **

Mr. Bharat Panchal 150

Mr. Rohit Jain 150

Mr. Ni�n Gaonkar 150

Ms. Pradnya Bagade 150

Mr. Vaibhav Puranik 150

Mr. Mahesh Panchal 150

Mr. Mahesh Gaitonde 150 **

Total 1,300

*Lapsed

**Par�ally Lapsed

 iii)  iden�fied employees who were granted op�on, during any one year, equal to or exceeding one percent of the issued 
capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the company at the �me of grant-Nil

Further, the Board of Directors of the Company, in their mee�ng held on 29th January 2020, had approved the extension for 
exercising the ESOPs’ granted in the year 2014 and 2016. The revised ESOP schedule a�er extending the exercise period is as 
follows:

Further, in the Extra Ordinary General Mee�ng held on 19th January ,2016, the Shareholders of the Company approved the issue 
of 43,158 equity op�ons under the Scheme �tled “Electronic Payment and Services-Employee Stock Op�on Plan 2015” (ESOP 
2015'). The Company has not granted any of these equity op�ons to the employees of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has developed and implemented a Risk Management Policy. This policy defines the Risk Management framework 
through Risk Management Structure, Risk Management Program, Risk Categories & Mi�ga�on Measures. The policy has also 
been displayed on the Company’s website www.electronicpay.in. 

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any fixed deposit from the public within the meaning of Sec�on 73 of The Companies Act, 2013 
and rules made there under.

DETAILS OF APPLICATIONS MADE OR ANY PENDING PROCEEDING UNDER INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE 2016 

The Company did not make any applica�on or there are no any pending proceedings under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 
2016.

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE IN VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE 
WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF

NIL

ACKNOWLEGEMENT

Your Directors would like to express their sincere apprecia�on assistance and co-opera�on received from the banks, 
Government authori�es, customers, vendors, and members during the year under review. Your Company also takes this 
opportunity to acknowledge the dedicated efforts made by staff and officers at all levels for their contribu�ons to the Company.

 For and on behalf of the board of 
 Electronic Payment and Services Private Limited  

Place - Mumbai   
Date - 12th July 2022 Mani Mamallan   Sanjay Kapoor
 Chairman & Managing Director Director
 DIN:-03584512 DIN:-03584520
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Par�culars Current Year (FY 2021-22) Previous Year (FY 2020-21)
  (in INR) (in INR)

Import of Capital Goods calculated on CIF Basis: NIL NIL

(1) Raw material NIL NIL

(2) Component and Spare parts NIL NIL

(3) Capital Goods- So�ware Purchase NIL NIL

Expenditure on account of:- NIL NIL

Royalty NIL NIL

Know-how NIL NIL

Professional and Consultancy fees NIL NIL

Interest NIL NIL

Other Ma�ers 280 3,701

Dividend Paid NIL NIL

Total Expenditure in Foreign exchange 280 3,701

“ANNEXURE I” to Directors’ Report for the Financial Year Ended on 31st March 2022

Par�culars required under Sec�on 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rule, 2014.

a) CONSERAVTION OF ENERGY-

 i) The steps taken or impact on conserva�on of energy: - NIL

 ii) The steps taken by the Company for u�lizing alternate resources: -NIL

 iii) The capital investment on energy conserva�on equipment’s: - NIL

b) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION-

 i) The efforts towards technology absorp�on:- NIL

 ii) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduc�on, product development or import subs�tu�on:- NIL

 iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the Financial 
Year):- NIL

 iv) The expenditure incurred on Research & Development:- NIL 

c) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO-

 Details of Foreign Earnings 

Par�culars Current Year (FY 2021-22) Previous Year (FY 2020-21)
 (in INR) (in INR)

Export of Goods calculated on FOB Basis NIL NIL

Interest and Dividend NIL NIL

Royalty NIL NIL

Know-how NIL NIL

Professional and Consultancy fees NIL NIL

Other Income NIL NIL

Total earning in Foreign exchange NIL NIL

Details of Foreign Expenditure

 For and on behalf of the board of 
 Electronic Payment and Services Private Limited  

Place - Mumbai   
Date - 12th July 2022 Mani Mamallan   Sanjay Kapoor
 Chairman & Managing Director Director
 DIN:-03584512   DIN:-03584520
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Sr. No. Name of Director Designa�on  Nature of  Number of mee�ngs of CSR 
   Directorship Commi�ee during the year
    Held A�ended

1.      

2.            
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ANNEXURE - II

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACTIVITIES 

[Pursuant to the Sec�on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 
2014, as amended �me to �me]

1. A brief outline of the Company's Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) policy of the Company: 

 The Company has a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy approved in the Board Mee�ng held on 24th February 2021.  

 The objec�ve of the CSR Policy of the Company is to lay down the approach, direc�ons as well as the guiding principles for 
selec�on, implementa�on, monitoring of CSR ac�vi�es and formula�on of the annual ac�on plan. The Policy covers the 
proposed CSR ac�vi�es to be undertaken by the Company and ensuring that they are in line with Schedule VII of the 
Companies Act 2013 as amended �me to �me.

 The CSR ac�vi�es of the Company shall be implemented in accordance with the following principles:

  To acknowledge the business and society interdependence and contribute to the society through the CSR ac�vi�es.

  To contribute towards sustainable development of the country through the CSR ac�vi�es.

  To recognize the corporate accountability towards the wellbeing of the society and protec�on of environment.

 To comply with the CSR provision of the Companies Act 2013 and rules framed thereunder as amended �me to �me.

2. The Composi�on of the CSR Commi�ee:- Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Amendment) Act, 2020, the Company is not required to formulate a separate CSR Commi�ee. Hence, the du�es of the said 
commi�ee shall be discharged by the Board of Directors of the Company un�l the said provisions become applicable to EPS.

3. The web-link where Composi�on of CSR commi�ee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on 
the website of the Company:-  h�ps://www.electronicpay.in/wp-content/themes/hala/downloads/internal-policies/EPS-
CSR-Policy.pdf

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the 
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable :- Not applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social 
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any:-

6. Average net profit of the Company as per sec�on 135(5) :- INR in ‘000s 53,895/-

7. (INR in ‘000s)

Sr. No. Financial Year Amount available for set-off from  Amount required to be set-off 
  preceding financial years  for the financial year, if any 
  (INR in ‘000s) (INR in ‘000s)

1. 2021-22 1,025 1,025 

 Total 1,025 1,025 

a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per sec�on 135(5) 1,078/-

b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or ac�vi�es of the previous financial years. -

c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any 1,025/-

d) Total CSR obliga�on for the financial year (7a+7b-7c)      53/-
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Sr. No. Par�culars Amount (INR in ‘000s.)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per sec�on 135(5) 1,078/-

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year  1,401/-

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 323/-

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or ac�vi�es of the previous 
 financial years, if any -

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 323/-

8. a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:- 

Total Amount   Amount Unspent (INR in ‘000s.) 
Spent for the   Total Amount transferred to   Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Financial Year.   Unspent CSR Account as per   Schedule VII as per second proviso to 
(INR in ‘000s.)  Sec�on 135(6)  Sec�on 135(5)

 Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer

376/- - - - - -

 b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:- None

 c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:- 

*Promo�ng health care including preven�ve health care

**Disaster management

 d) Amount spent in Administra�ve Overheads :- NIL

 e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable :- Not applicable

 f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) :- INR in ‘000s 376/- 

 g) Excess amount for set off, if any :-

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

Sr Name of the Item from Local  Loca�on of the Amount  Mode of Mode of 
No. Project the List of Area Project spent for impleme- Implementa�on
  ac�vi�es (Yes/  the Project nta�on Through 
  in schedule No)  (INR in Direct Implementa�on
  VII of the   ‘000s) (Yes/ Agency
  Act     No 
    State Disc�ct   Name CSR 
         Registra
         �on
         Number

1 Covid Vaccina�on  *(i) &  Yes MH Mumbai 376/- Yes NA NA
 to the persons  **(ix)
 other than 
 employees & 
 their families 
 as per General 
 Circular No.  
 13/2021 dated 
 30th July 2021 
 issued by 
 Ministry of 
 Corporate Affairs 
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9.  (a)   Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years :- Not applicable

Sr. Preceding  Amount  Amount  Amount transferred to any fund Amount
No. Financial transferred to spent in  specified under Schedule VII as  remaining to 
 Year Upspent CSR the   per sec�on 135(6), if any  be spent in
  Account  repor�ng     succeeding
  Under sec�on Financial Name of Amount Date of financial 
  135 (6) Year  the fund (in Rs.) Transfer years
  (in Rs.) (in Rs.)    (in Rs.)

 (b)  Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):- None 

10.  In case of crea�on or acquisi�on of capital asset, furnish the details rela�ng to the asset so created or acquired through 
CSR spent in the financial year:- Not applicable

 a) Date of crea�on or acquisi�on of the capital asset(s).

 b) Amount of CSR spent for crea�on or acquisi�on of capital asset

 c) Details of the en�ty or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered,
  their address etc.

 d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and loca�on of the capital asset).

11. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per sec�on 135(5):- Not 
applicable.

 For and on behalf of the board of 
 Electronic Payment and Services Private Limited  

Place - Mumbai   
Date - 12th July 2022 Mani Mamallan   Sanjay Kapoor
 Chairman & Managing Director Director
 DIN:-03584512   DIN:-03584520



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Electronic Payment and Services Private Limited Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Electronic Payment and Services Private Limited (“the Company”), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022, and the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for 
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accoun�ng policies and other explanatory informa�on.

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the aforesaid financial statements 
give the informa�on required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the Accoun�ng Standards prescribed under sec�on 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accoun�ng 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Accoun�ng Standards”) and other accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India, of 
the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2022, and its profit, its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Audi�ng specified under sec�on 
143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibili�es under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements sec�on of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibili�es in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Informa�on Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

• The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other informa�on. The other informa�on comprises the 
informa�on included in the Director’s report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon.

• Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other informa�on and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

• In connec�on with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informa�on and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other informa�on is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated

• If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other informa�on, we 
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the ma�ers stated in sec�on 134(5) of the Act with respect to the 
prepara�on of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial posi�on, financial performance, cash flows 
of the Company in accordance with the Accoun�ng Standards and other accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accoun�ng records in accordance   with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preven�ng and detec�ng frauds and other irregulari�es; selec�on and 
applica�on of appropriate accoun�ng policies; making judgments and es�mates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementa�on  and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng records, relevant to the prepara�on and presenta�on of the financial statement 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to con�nue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accoun�ng unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease opera�ons, or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial repor�ng process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 
a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skep�cism throughout 
the audit. We also:

• Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detec�ng a material misstatement resul�ng from fraud is higher than for one 
resul�ng from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the override of 
internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under sec�on 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the opera�ng effec�veness of such 
controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng es�mates and related 
disclosures made by the management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or condi�ons that may cast significant doubt on 
the Company’s ability to con�nue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw a�en�on in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or condi�ons may cause the Company to cease to con�nue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether 
the financial statements represent the underlying transac�ons and events in a manner that achieves fair presenta�on.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the   financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable 
that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quan�ta�ve materiality and qualita�ve factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evalua�ng the results of our 
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any iden�fied misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned scope and �ming of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we iden�fy during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all rela�onships and other ma�ers that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Sec�on 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

 a) We have sought and obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

 b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company a so far as it appears from 
our examina�on of those books.

 c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the relevant books of account.

 d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accoun�ng Standards specified under Sec�on 133 
of the Act.

 e) On the basis of the wri�en representa�ons received from the directors as on 31st March 2022 taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March 2022 from being appointed as a director in 
terms of Sec�on 164(2) of the Act.

 f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of the Company and the 
opera�ng effec�veness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an 
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and opera�ng effec�veness of the Company’s internal financial controls over 
financial repor�ng.

 g) With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of 
sec�on 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the 
explana�ons given to us, the Company being a private company, sec�on 197 of the Act related to the managerial 
remunera�on is not applicable.
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 h) With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the 
explana�ons given to us:

  i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending li�ga�ons on its financial posi�on in its financial statements. 
(Refer note 25)

  ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including deriva�ve contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses.

  iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Educa�on and Protec�on Fund by 
the Company.

  iv. (a)  The Management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no funds have been 
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind 
of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or en�ty(ies), including foreign en��es 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in wri�ng or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ul�mate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or 
the like on behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries.

   (b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no funds have been 
received by the Company from any person(s) or en�ty(ies), including foreign en��es (“Funding Par�es”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in wri�ng or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or 
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Funding Party (“Ul�mate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ul�mate Beneficiaries.

   (c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our no�ce that has caused us to believe that the representa�ons under 
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

  v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not proposed final dividend for the 
year.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of 
Sec�on 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the ma�ers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

 For Deloi�e Haskins & Sells LLP
 Chartered Accountants 
 (Firm’s Registra�on No. 117366W/W-100018)

 Anjum Qazi
 (Partner)
 (Membership No. 104968)
 (UDIN:22104968AMQAIH4485)

Place: Cape Town 

Date: 12th July,2022
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ sec�on of our report of even 
date to the Members of Electronic Payment and Services Private Limited)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng under Clause  (i) of Sub-sec�on 3 of Sec�on 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of Electronic Payment and Services Private Limited (“the 
Company”) as of 31st March 2022 in conjunc�on with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on 
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial repor�ng criteria established by the Company considering the essen�al components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. These responsibili�es include the design, implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the preven�on and detec�on of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accoun�ng records, and the �mely prepara�on of reliable financial informa�on, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of the Company 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Repor�ng (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on 
Audi�ng prescribed under sec�on 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial repor�ng was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effec�vely in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system 
over financial repor�ng and their opera�ng effec�veness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial repor�ng 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial repor�ng, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and tes�ng and evalua�ng the design and opera�ng effec�veness of internal control based on the assessed risk. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial repor�ng.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng

A company’s internal financial control over financial repor�ng is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial repor�ng and the prepara�on of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accoun�ng principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial repor�ng includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transac�ons and disposi�ons of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transac�ons are recorded as 
necessary to permit prepara�on of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisa�ons of management and directors 
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding preven�on or �mely detec�on of unauthorised acquisi�on, use, 
or disposi�on of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limita�ons of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng

Because of the inherent limita�ons of internal financial controls over financial repor�ng, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projec�ons of any evalua�on of the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng to future periods are subject to the risk 
that the internal financial control over financial repor�ng may become inadequate because of changes in condi�ons, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the Company has, in all material 
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial repor�ng and such internal financial controls over 
financial repor�ng were opera�ng effec�vely as at 31st March 2022, based on the criteria for internal financial control over 
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financial repor�ng established by the Company considering the essen�al components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India.

 For Deloi�e Haskins & Sells LLP
 Chartered Accountants 
 (Firm’s Registra�on No. 117366W/W-100018)

 Anjum Qazi
 (Partner)
 (Membership No. 104968)
 (UDIN:22104968AMQAIH4485)

Place: Cape Town 

Date: 12th July,2022
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 
sec�on of our report of even date)

In terms of the informa�on and explana�ons sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account and records 
examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that

(i) In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment:

 (a) (A)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full par�culars, including quan�ta�ve details and 
situa�on of its Property, Plant and Equipment.

  (B)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full par�culars of Intangible Assets.

 (b) The Company has a program of verifica�on of property plant and equipment so to cover all the items in a phased 
manner over a period of 3 years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the 
nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain property plant and equipment were physically verified by the 
Management during the year. According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, no material discrepancies 
were no�ced on such verifica�on.

 (c) The Company does not have any immovable proper�es and hence repor�ng under clause (i)(c) of the Order is not 
applicable.

 (d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets or both during the year. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(i)(d), of the Order is not applicable.

 (e) No proceedings have been ini�ated during the year or are pending against the Company as at 31st March 2022 for 
holding any benami property under the Benami Transac�ons (Prohibi�on) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules 
made thereunder.

(ii) In respect of the Inventories:

 (a)   The Company does not have any inventory and hence repor�ng under clause (ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

 (b) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Company has been sanc�oned working capital limits in 
excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, during the year, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. In our 
opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the revised quarterly returns or statements 
comprising stock statements, book debt statements, creditors’ statements filed by the Company with such banks are 
in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company of the respec�ve quarters. Further, the company 
does not classify Other Receivables as book debts and only considers Opera�ng Expense Creditors for the purpose of 
quarterly repor�ng.

(iii) The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security, and granted any loans or advances in 
the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other par�es during 
the year, and hence repor�ng under clause (iii) of the Order is not applicable.

 (a) The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or stood guarantee, or provided security 
to any other en�ty during the year, and hence repor�ng under clause (iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

 (b) The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or stood guarantee, or provided security 
to any other en�ty during the year, and hence repor�ng under clause (iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

 (c) The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or stood guarantee, or provided security 
to any other en�ty during the year, and hence repor�ng under clause (iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

 (d) The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or stood guarantee, or provided security 
to any other en�ty during the year, and hence repor�ng under clause (iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

 (e) The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or stood guarantee, or provided security 
to any other en�ty during the year, and hence repor�ng under clause (iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

 (f) According to informa�on and explana�ons given] to us and based on the audit procedures performed, the Company 
has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any 
terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence, repor�ng under clause (iii)(f) is not applicable.

(iv) In our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sec�on 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in 
respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees provided or security given, as applicable.
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(v) The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence, repor�ng under clause 
(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under Sec�on 148(1) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, for business ac�vi�es carried out by the Company. Hence, repor�ng under paragraph 3 (vi) of the order is not 
applicable.

(vii) In respect of statutory dues:

 (a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948, 
Service Tax, Income-tax, Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the Company have 
generally been regularly deposited by it with the appropriate authori�es though there has been slight delay in few 
cases.

  There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Income-tax, cess and 
other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31st March 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they 
became payable.

 (b) The Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited as on 31st March 
2022, on account of disputes are given below:

(viiii) There were no transac�ons rela�ng to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or disclosed as income in the 
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

(ix) With respect to repor�ng requirements of paragraph 3(ix) of the Order:

 (a) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of 
interest thereon to any lender during the year.

 (b) The Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial ins�tu�on or government or any 
government authority.

 (c) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the Company were, applied by the 
Company during the year for the purposes for which the loans were obtained.

 (d) On an overall examina�on of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis have, prima 
facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

 (e) On an overall examina�on of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any 
en�ty or person on account of or to meet the obliga�ons of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

 (f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securi�es held in its subsidiaries or joint ventures 
or associate companies.

(x) (a)  The Company has not raised moneys by way of ini�al public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) 
during the year and hence repor�ng under paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

 (b) During the year the Company has not made any preferen�al allotment or private placement of shares or conver�ble 
debentures (fully or partly or op�onally) and hence repor�ng under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge, no material fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been 
no�ced or reported during the year.

Name of the  Nature of Amount  Amount  Period to which  Forum where dispute is
statute dues involved unpaid the amount  pending
    relates 

Finance Act, 1994  Service Tax 2,85,36,936 2,85,36,936 October 2011   Customs, Central Excise
and Service Tax Laws    to and Service Tax Appellate
    March 2014  Tribunal

Finance Act, 1994  Service Tax 1,83,12,546 1,83,12,546 FY 2014-15 to Commissioner of Central
and Service Tax Laws    FY 2017-18  GST and Central Excise

The Maharashtra  Value  12,85,737 12,85,737 FY 2015-16 Joint Commissioner of
Value Added Tax Added Tax     State Tax
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 (b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-Sec�on (12) of Sec�on 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in 
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, 
during the year and upto the date of this report.

 (c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during 
the year

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence repor�ng under paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable

(xiii) In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Sec�on 188 of the Act for all transac�ons with the related par�es and the 
details of related party transac�ons have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable 
accoun�ng standards. The Company is a private company and hence the provisions of Sec�on 177 of the Companies Act, 
2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of its 
business.

 (b) We have considered, the internal audit reports, issued to the Company during the year and �ll date, in determining 
the nature, �ming and extent of our audit procedures.

(xv) In our opinion, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transac�ons with its directors or directors 
of its holding company or persons connected with them and hence provisions of sec�on 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 
are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under sec�on 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, 
repor�ng under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

 (b) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the group and accordingly repor�ng under clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is 
not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and in the immediately preceding 
financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resigna�on of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ra�os, ageing and expected dates of realiza�on of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabili�es, other informa�on accompanying the financial statements, and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
Management plans and based on our examina�on of the evidence suppor�ng the assump�ons, nothing has come to our 
a�en�on, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report, indica�ng that 
Company is not capable of mee�ng its liabili�es exis�ng at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of 
the Company. We further state that our repor�ng is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give 
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabili�es falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will 
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and there are no unspent 
CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act or special account in 
compliance with the provision of sub-sec�on (6) of sec�on 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, repor�ng under clause (xx) of 
the Order is not applicable for the year.

 For Deloi�e Haskins & Sells LLP
 Chartered Accountants 
 (Firm’s Registra�on No. 117366W/W-100018)

 Anjum Qazi
 (Partner)
 (Membership No. 104968)
 (UDIN:22104968AMQAIH4485)

Place: Cape Town 

Date: 12th July,2022
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I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES     

  Shareholders’ Funds    

   Share  capital                               3                           8,013                          32,589 

   Reserves and surplus                  4                    1,920,761                     1,643,033 

                         1,928,774                      1,675,622 

  Non-Current Liabili�es    

   Long-term borrowings 5                       960,017                        340,132 

   Long-term provisions 6                         82,809                          80,183 

                         1,042,826                         420,315 

  Current Liabili�es    

   Trade payables 7  

   (a)  Dues of Micro and Small Enterprises                        150,193                          76,891 

   (b)  Dues other than Micro and Small Enterprises                        420,586                        413,472 

   Other current liabili�es 8                       276,906                        174,499 

   Short-term provisions 9                         41,288                          38,420 

   Short-term borrowings 10                       375,990                        389,930 

                         1,264,963                      1,093,212       

   Total                     4,236,563                      3,189,149      

II. ASSETS     

  Non-Current Assets    

   Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible assets   

   Property, Plant & Equipment 11                    1,925,307                     1,305,739 

   Intangible assets 11                         11,735                          23,220 

   Capital work-in-progress                          37,522                          32,747 

                         1,974,564                      1,361,706 

   Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 12                       204,748                                  -   

   Long-term loans and advances 13                       137,565                        143,640 

   Other non-current assets 14                       427,752                        200,920 

                           770,065                        344,560 

  Current Assets    

   Trade receivables 15                       413,931                        436,333 

   Cash and cash equivalents 16                         94,124                        311,172 

   Short-term loans and advances 17                       510,152                        364,434 

   Other current assets 18                       473,727                        370,944 

                         1,491,934                      1,482,883       

   Total                     4,236,563                      3,189,149 
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Amount in INR ‘000s

Par�culars  Note No As at As at 
      31st March, 2022   31st March, 2021   
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Notes 1 to 38 form part of the Financial Statements     
     
In terms of our report a�ached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
For Deloi�e Haskins & Sells LLP     
Chartered Accountants     
     
     
     
Anjum A Qazi Sanjay Kapoor Mani Mamallan
Partner                                                         Director Chairman & Managing Director
Date : 12  July, 2022 DIN: 03584520 DIN: 03584512
Place: Cape Town Date : 12  July, 2022 Date : 12  July, 2022
 Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
     
     
     
 Pooja Panvelkar Sudhanshu Soman
 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
 Date : 12  July, 2022 Date : 12  July, 2022
 Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
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STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FY 2021-2022

ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72300MH2011PTC222535

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2022

 Revenue from Con�nuing Opera�ons:       

  Revenue from opera�ons (Net of GST) 19                      3,345,683                       3,311,877 

  Other Income                         20                           79,495                          118,036 

   Total Revenue  3,425,178                       3,429,913   

 Expenses:     

  Employee benefits expense 21                         338,991                          278,685 

  Finance costs 22                           89,707                          107,846 

  Deprecia�on and amor�sa�on expense 11                         399,647                          390,233 

  Opera�ng Expenses  23                      2,251,670                       2,406,851 

  Other General expenses 24                         296,759                          240,940 

   Total Expenses                       3,376,774                       3,424,555

 Profit Before Tax                            48,404                              5,358 

  Tax expense:    

   Excess provision for tax rela�ng to prior year                                   -                                     -   

   Current Tax 31                                  -                                     -   

   Deferred Tax 31                         204,748                                   -   

 Profit for the year                          253,152                              5,358    

  Earnings per equity share (Face Value INR 10/- each)    

   Basic (INR) 30                                316                                     8 

   Diluted (INR) 30                                293                                     6       

Amount in INR ‘000s

Par�culars  Note No As at As at 
      31st March, 2022   31st March, 2021   

Notes 1 to 38 form part of the Financial Statements     
     
In terms of our report a�ached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
For Deloi�e Haskins & Sells LLP     
Chartered Accountants     
     
     
     
Anjum A Qazi Sanjay Kapoor Mani Mamallan
Partner                                                         Director Chairman & Managing Director
Date : 12  July, 2022 DIN: 03584520 DIN: 03584512
Place: Cape Town Date : 12  July, 2022 Date : 12  July, 2022
 Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
     
     
     
 Pooja Panvelkar Sudhanshu Soman
 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
 Date : 12  July, 2022 Date : 12  July, 2022
 Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
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STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FY 2021-2022

ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72300MH2011PTC222535

Cash Flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022

A.  Cash Flow from Opera�ng Ac�vi�es   

 Profit Before Tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss 48,404 5,358

 Adjustments for :  

 Deprecia�on and amor�sa�on expense                           399,647  390,233 

 Gratuity expense                               4,187                              2,131 

 Interest on MSME wri�en back                           (12,206)                                    -   

 Finance costs 89,707 107,846 

 Interest on Fixed Deposit                           (24,315)                           (15,776)

 Interest on Income Tax refund                                (521)                             (8,416)

 Provision for doub�ul debts                               1,992                                2,407 

 Provision for Doub�ul Recoveries (from Vendors/ Customers)                             88,123                            107,514 

 Provision for Doub�ul Recoveries (Insurance)                                    -                                21,758 

 Provision For Doub�ul Recoveries (Insurance) - wri�en back                             (9,602)                                    -   

 Loss on Insurance Claim Receivable                             19,825                                     -   

 Bad debts wri�en off                                  470                                3,479 

 Loss on receivable from CRA wri�en off                                    -                                47,511 

 Loss on The�/Damage/Write off of Property, Plant and Equipment                             88,625                                1,653 

 Provision for Con�ngencies - Electricity wri�en back                           (32,805)                           (92,960)

 Provision for Loss on receivable from CRA wri�en back                                    -                              (47,511)

 Provision for Diminu�on in value of Non-Current Investments                                    -                                  2,627 

 Profit on Sale and Lease back                                    -                                   (768)

 Opera�ng profit before Changes in Working Capital                            661,531                            527,086  

 Changes in Working Capital  

 Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in opera�ng assets:  

 Trade receivables                           (68,183)                         (228,570)

 Short-term loans and advances (103,050) (138,821)

 Long-term loans and advances                             (2,373)                             32,552 

 Other current assets                         (109,066)                             35,526 

 Cash in ATM                               1,277                                2,530 

 Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in opera�ng liabili�es:  

 Trade payables                             92,622                            (65,551)

 Other current liabili�es                           (21,106)                           (45,725)

 Short-term provisions                               2,868                            (40,820)

 Long-term provisions 31,244 29,588

 Cash Generated from Opera�ons                           485,764                            107,795 

 Net Tax and interest on (tax paid) / refund received                           (32,739)                             89,648 

 Net Cash flow from Opera�ng Ac�vi�es (A)                           453,025                            197,443 

Amount in INR ‘000s

Par�culars  For the year ended For the year ended
     31st March, 2022   31st March, 2021   
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Cash and Cash Equivalents comprises of

 Cash on hand                                    26                                     26 

 Balance with Banks                             94,034                            263,396 

 Cash and Cash equivalents as per Note 16                             94,060                            263,422 

Amount in INR ‘000s

Par�culars  For the year ended For the year ended
     31st March, 2022   31st March, 2021   

Par�culars  As at As at
     31st March, 2022   31st March, 2021   

B. Cash Flow from Inves�ng Ac�vi�es   

 Capital expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment, 

 including capital advances                         (978,577)                           (71,402)

 Interest on Fixed Deposit received                             20,375                              15,694 

 Purchase of long-term investments in subsidiary                                    -                                (2,627)

 Bank Balances not considered as Cash and Cash Equivalents                         (226,832)                             21,351 

 Balances with banks in Deposit accounts - over three months 46,409 (6,319)

 Net Cash Flow (used in) Inves�ng Ac�vi�es (B) (1,138,625) (43,303)

C.  Cash Flow from Financing Ac�vi�es   

 Proceeds from short-term borrowings (overdra� / cash credit) 5,195,538 4,081,921 

 Repayment of short-term borrowings (overdra� / cash credit) (5,308,145) (4,107,055)

 Proceeds from long-term borrowings 1,058,398 345,689 

 Repayment of long-term borrowings (339,846) (476,282)

 Payment of Finance Cost (89,707) (89,688)

 Cash  Flow  from Financing Ac�vi�es (C) 516,238 (245,415)

 Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (169,362) (91,275)

 Add: Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 263,422 354,697 

 Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 94,060 263,422 

Notes to Cash Flow Statement:  

1) Cash and Cash equivalents includes cash and bank balances in current accounts.  

2) The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Accoun�ng Standard (AS-3) 
"Cash Flow Statement" specified under sec�on 133 of The Companies Act 2013.      

In terms of our report a�ached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
For Deloi�e Haskins & Sells LLP     
Chartered Accountants              

Anjum A Qazi Sanjay Kapoor Mani Mamallan
Partner                                                         Director Chairman & Managing Director
Date : 12  July, 2022 DIN: 03584520 DIN: 03584512
Place: Cape Town Date : 12  July, 2022 Date : 12  July, 2022
 Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai     

 Pooja Panvelkar Sudhanshu Soman
 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
 Date : 12  July, 2022 Date : 12  July, 2022
 Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
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Note 1:  Corporate  Informa�on            

Electronic Payment and Services Private Limited (‘EPS’ or the ‘Company’) is an ATM opera�ons company founded to provide ATM 
opera�on services to Banks. Further, EPS provides an integrated solu�on which includes the supply and installa�on of 
Automated Teller Machines (‘ATMs’) in all developed areas as well as suppor�ng such business ini�a�ves in remote areas. EPS 
was incorporated on 29th September, 2011 and commenced its business in June, 2012.            

Note 2: Significant Accoun�ng Policies                     

a Basis for prepara�on of Financial Statements           

 The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accoun�ng 
Principles in India (‘Indian GAAP’) to comply with the Accoun�ng Standards specified under Sec�on 133 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (the ‘2013 Act’), and the relevant provisions of the 2013 Act read with the Companies (Accoun�ng Standards) 
Rules, 2006 .

 The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost conven�on. The accoun�ng 
policies adopted in the prepara�on of the financial statements are consistent with those adopted in the previous year.                     

b Use  of  Es�mates           

 The  prepara�on of the financial statements in conformity with  Indian GAAP  requires the management to make es�mates 
and assump�ons considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabili�es (including con�ngent liabili�es) and the 
reported income and expenses during the year.  The management believes that the es�mates used in prepara�on of the 
financial statements are prudent and reasonable.  Future results could differ due to these es�mates and the differences 
between the actual results and the es�mates are recognised in the periods in which the results are known / materialise.            

c Cash and Cash Equivalents           

 Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original 
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisi�on), highly liquid investments that are readily conver�ble into 
known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.                      

d Cash Flow Statement           

 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted 
for the effects of transac�ons of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. 
The cash flows from opera�ng, inves�ng and financing ac�vi�es of the Company are segregated based on available 
informa�on.                      

e Deprecia�on and Amor�sa�on           

 Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount subs�tuted for cost. The es�mated residual value for 
assets is taken as Nil.

 Deprecia�on on tangible Property Plant and Equipment has been provided on the straight-line method as per the useful 
life prescribed in Schedule II to the 2013 Act except in respect of the following categories of assets, in whose case the life of 
the assets has been assessed as under based on management internal/ technical evalua�on, taking into account the 
nature of the asset, the es�mated usage of the asset, the opera�ng condi�ons of the asset, past history of replacement, 
an�cipated technological changes, manufacturers warran�es and maintenance support, etc.:           

STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FY 2021-2022

ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72300MH2011PTC222535

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Site Assets:          

Automated Teller Machine 12 Years  

Uninterrupted Power Supply Machine 7 Years    

Site Interior and Other Merchandises 7 Years    

Air Condi�oner 7 Years    

VSAT  7 Years    

E-Surveillance 7 Years    

Digital Video Recorder (DVR) 7 Years    

Taken over ATMs and related assets like site interiors, VSAT, AC, UPS 3/7 Years    

Office furniture and fixtures 5 Years    

Office equipment 3 Years    

Descrip�on of Property Plant and Equipment Useful Life

For FY 2020-21, the Audit and Risk Commi�ee of the Company based on a technical assessment recommended and the Board of 
Directors of the Company resolved that the Company changes its accoun�ng es�mates for the useful life of the block of assets for 
Automated Teller Machines under Property, Plant and Equipment. Accordingly, the Company has changed its accoun�ng 
es�mate for the remaining useful life as shown in the above table. Due to this change in accoun�ng es�mate, the deprecia�on for 
the asset block under considera�on was reduced by INR 127,659,634 for the FY 2020-21.

Deprecia�on on tangible Property Plant and Equipment provided on the straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in 
Schedule II to the 2013 Act are:

Descrip�on of Property Plant and Equipment Useful Life

Computers  3 years

Descrip�on of Property Plant and Equipment Useful Life

Computer So�ware 3 years

Intangible assets are amor�sed over their es�mated useful life on straight line method as follows :

The es�mated useful life of the intangible assets and the amor�sa�on period are reviewed at the end of each financial year and 
the amor�sa�on period is revised to reflect the changed pa�ern, if any.           

f Revenue Recogni�on           

 Revenues from contracts, are recognised when rendered; and there is reasonable certainty of ul�mate realisa�on for the 
same.Revenues un�l the Balance Sheet date for ATM and related services provided and for which the billing is pending are 
aggregated and reported as Unbilled Revenue.           

g Other Income           

 (i)    Profit/ Loss on sale of Property Plant and Equipment is recognised on transfer of significant risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset to the buyer.

 (ii) Interest on fixed deposits recognised on �me propor�on basis, having regard to the amount outstanding and the rate 
applicable.

 (iii) Dividend income is accounted when such dividend is declared and the Company’s right to receive payment is 
established.            

h Property, Plant and Equipment           

 (i) Property, Plant and Equipment including intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisi�on less accumulated 
deprecia�on, amor�sa�on and impairment, if any. The cost of Property, Plant and Equipment includes all incidental 
expenses related to acquisi�on and installa�on and other pre-opera�on expenses un�l the asset is ready to put to use 
for its intended purposes.
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 (ii) Capital work in progress includes, tangible assets which are not yet installed at ATM sites, are carried at cost, 
comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and a�ributable interest, if applicable.

 (iii) Capital work in progress also includes so�ware related expenses that are under developmental stage or have not 
been given clearance for going live.                     

i Foreign Currency Transac�ons           

 Transac�ons in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the 
date of the transac�on or at rates that closely approximate to the rate on the date of the transac�on. Foreign currency 
monetary items of the Company, outstanding at the Balance Sheet date are restated at the year-end rates.                      

j Investments      ‘     

 Investments are accounted for and valued as per Accoun�ng Standard (AS) 13 - ‘Accoun�ng for Investments’ as specified 
under Sec�on 133 of the 2013 Act.Cost of Investments include acquisi�on charges such as brokerage, fees and other 
incidental expenses.Long Term Investments are carried individually at cost less provision for diminu�on, other than 
temporary diminu�on, in the value of such Investments.Current Investments are carried individually, at cost or fair value, 
whichever is less.                      

k Employee Benefits           

 Employee Benefits include provident fund and gratuity.    

 Defined-contribu�on plans           

 The Company’s contribu�on to provident fund is considered as a defined contribu�on plan and is charged as an expense 
as they fall due, based on the amount of contribu�on required to be made and when services are rendered by the 
employees.

 Defined-benefits plans           

 For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit 
Credit method, with actuarial valua�ons being carried out at the date of the Balance Sheet. Actuarial gains and losses are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they occur. Past service cost is recognised 
immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested and otherwise is amor�sed on a straight-line basis over the 
average period un�l the benefits become vested. The re�rement benefit obliga�on recognised in the Balance Sheet 
represents the present value of the defined benefit obliga�on as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost,  as reduced 
by the fair value of scheme assets.

 Other Employee Benefits

 The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by 
employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the service. These benefits include performance 
incen�ve which are expected to occur within twelve months a�er the end of the period in which the employee renders 
the related service.

l Leases

 Where the Company as a lessor leases assets under finance leases, such amounts are recognised as receivables at an 
amount equal to the net investment in the lease and the finance income is recognised based on a constant rate of return 
on the outstanding net investment.Assets leased by the Company in its capacity as a lessee, where substan�ally all the 
risks and rewards of ownership vest in the Company are classified as finance leases. Such leases are capitalised at the 
incep�on of the lease at the lower of the fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments and a liability is 
created for an equivalent amount. Each lease rental paid is allocated between the liability and the interest cost so as to 
obtain a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability for each year.Lease arrangements where the risks 
and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substan�ally vest with the lessor are recognised as opera�ng leases. 
Lease rentals under opera�ng leases are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.

m Earnings per Share

 Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) a�er tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary 
items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is 

Annual Report 2021-2022 43



44

computed by dividing  the profit / (loss) a�er tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for 
dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any a�ributable taxes) rela�ng to the dilu�ve poten�al 
equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the 
weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilu�ve instruments.

n Taxes on Income

 Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the 
applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws.

 Deferred tax is recognised on �ming differences, being the differences between the taxable income and the accoun�ng 
income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods.  Deferred tax is 
measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substan�vely enacted as at the repor�ng date.   Deferred tax 
liabili�es are recognised for all �ming differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for �ming differences of items other 
than unabsorbed deprecia�on and carry forward losses only to the extent that reasonable certainty exists that sufficient 
future taxable income will be available against which these can be realised. However, if there are unabsorbed 
deprecia�on and carry forward of losses and items rela�ng to capital losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only if 
there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that there will be sufficient future taxable income available to 
realise the assets. Deferred tax assets and liabili�es are offset if such items relate to taxes on income levied by the same 
governing tax laws and the Company has a legally enforceable right for such set off. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at 
each Balance Sheet date for their realisability. 

o Provisions, Con�ngent Liabili�es and Con�ngent Assets

 In accordance with AS-29, Provisions, Con�ngent Liabili�es and Con�ngent Assets, the Company recognises provisions 
when it has a present obliga�on as a result of a past event, it is probable that an ou�low of resources embodying 
economic benefits will be required to se�le the obliga�on and when a reliable es�mate of the amount of the obliga�on 
can be made. 

 Provisions are determined based on management es�mate required to se�le the obliga�on at the Balance Sheet date, 
supplemented by experience of similar transac�ons. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to 
reflect the current management es�mates. 

 A disclosure of con�ngent liability is made when there is:

 - a possible obliga�on arising from a past event, the existence of which will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the Company; or

 - a present obliga�on arising from a past event which is not recognised as it is not probable that an ou�low of 
resources will be required to se�le the obliga�on or a reliable es�mate of the amount of the obliga�on cannot be 
made.

 When there is a possible obliga�on or a present obliga�on in respect of which the likelihood of ou�low of resources is 
remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

 Con�ngent Assets, if any, are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the recogni�on of income 
that may never be realized.

p Impairment  of  Assets

 The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indica�on that an asset may be impaired. 
Impairment loss, if any, is provided in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent the carrying amount of assets exceeds 
their es�mated recoverable amount.

q Onerous  contracts

 Provisions for onerous contracts are recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a 
contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of mee�ng the future obliga�ons under the contract. The provision is 
measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of termina�ng the contract and the expected net cost of 
con�nuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss on the assets 
associated with that contract.



r Goods and Services Tax (‘GST’)

 GST is accounted for in the books in the period in which the underlying service received is accounted and when there is 
reasonable certainty in availing / u�lising the credits.

s Employee share based payment

 The Company has cons�tuted an Employee Stock Op�on Plan - “Electronic Payment and Services - Employee Stock Op�on 
Plan 2014”(‘EPS-ESOP 2014’) and “Electronic Payment and Services - Employee Stock Op�on Plan 2015” (‘EPS-ESOP 
2015’).Employee Stock Op�ons granted are accounted under the ‘Intrinsic Value Method’ stated in the Guidance Note on 
Employee Share Based Payments issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India.

t Insurance claims

 Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admi�ed / expected to be admi�ed and to the extent that  the 
amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable to expect ul�mate collec�on.

u Borrowing cost

 Borrowing costs include interest and ancillary costs incurred in connec�on with the borrowing of funds which are charged 
to the Statement of Profit and Loss, with the loan processing fee being amor�sed over the tenure of the loan.

v Opera�ng Cycle

 Based on the nature of products / ac�vi�es of the Company and the normal �me between acquisi�on of assets and their 
realisa�on in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its opera�ng cycle as 12 months for the purpose of 
classifica�on of its assets and liabili�es as current and non-current.           
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Par�culars As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021

 Number of INR in ‘000 Number of INR in ‘000
 Shares  Shares

(a)   Authorised      

Equity Shares of INR 10/- each  1,310,000 13,100 1,310,000 13,100 

Compulsory Conver�ble Preference Shares of INR 10/- each  5,700,000 57,000 5,700,000 57,000 

  7,010,000 70,100 7,010,000 70,100 

(b)   Issued, Subscribed and fully paid-up      

Equity Shares of INR 10/- each   801,252 8,013 699,800 6,998 

Series B and Series C Compulsory Conver�ble Preference 
Shares (‘CCPS’) of INR 10/- each - - 2,559,100 25,591 

Total   801,252 8,013 3,258,900 32,589 

Note 3 : Share capital 

 Note 3 (a) : Reconcilia�on of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the repor�ng year 

Par�culars As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021

 Number of INR in ‘000 Number of INR in ‘000
 Shares  Shares

i.   Equity Shares      

  Outstanding at the beginning of the year  699,788 6,998 699,788 6,998 

  Add/(Less): Changes during the year 101,464 1,015 - -

  Closing Balance  801,252 8,013 699,788 6,998      

 ii.   Series B CCPS:      

  Outstanding at the beginning of the year  58,635 586 58,635 586 

  Add/(Less): Changes during the year (58,635) (586) - -  

 Closing Balance - - 58,635                        586

 Series C CCPS: 

 Outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,500,525 25,005 2,500,525 25,005 

 Add/(Less): Changes during the year (2,500,525) (25,005) - -

 Closing Balance - - 2,500,525 25,005

 Total - - 2,559,160 25,591     

STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FY 2021-2022

ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72300MH2011PTC222535

Notes forming part of Financial Statements
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 Note 3 (b) : Details of shareholders holding more than 5% Shares in the Company 

Par�culars As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021

 Number of %  Number of %
 Shares held Shareholding Shares held Shareholding

Sr. Promoter Name Shares held by promoter Shares held by promoter % change 
No.  at the end of the year at the beginning of the year during 

 Number of % of total   Number of % of total the year**
 Shares  Share Shares  Share

i.   Equity Shares      

  Vidya Rani Mani Mamallan  90,000 11.23% 90,000 12.86%

  Aavishkaar India II Company Limited  168,635 21.05%                168,635  24.10%

  Aavishkaar Goodwell India Microfinance 
 Development Company II Limited 105,038 13.11% 105,038 15.01%

  APIS Growth 3 Limited  220,448 27.51% 220,448 31.50%

  Asia Par�cipa�ons B.V.  166,889  20.83% 65,425 9.35%

  Others  50,242 6.27% 50,242 7.18%

  Total 801,252 100.00% 699,788 100.00%

ii.   Series B CCPS      

  Asia Par�cipa�ons B.V. - 0.00% 58,635 100.00%

iii.   Series C CCPS 

 Asia Par�cipa�ons B.V. - 0.00% 2,500,525 100.00%

STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FY 2021-2022

ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72300MH2011PTC222535

Notes forming part of Financial Statements

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters and percentage of change during the year.

 Equity Share capital 

1 Vidya Rani Mani Mamallan 90,000 11.23% 90,000 12.86% -1.63%

2 Sanjay Amirt Kapoor 26,250 3.28% 26,250 3.75% -0.48%

3 Guruswamy Ramakrishnan 15,000 1.87% 15,000 2.14% -0.27&

 Total 131,250 16.38% 131,250 18.76% -2.38%

 * The change in percentage shareholding of the promoters during the financial year is on account of conversion of Series B and 
Series C CCPS. 

Note 3(c): Terms / rights a�ached to Equity Shares 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share.  

Each holder of Equity Shares is en�tled to one vote per share.

 In the event of liquida�on, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive, in propor�on to their shareholding, the remaining 
assets of the Company a�er distribu�on of all preferen�al amounts.
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Note 3(d) :Terms of Conversion of CCPS 

Series B CCPS:

During the year, 58,635 Series B CCPS have been compulsorily converted into 58,635 Equity Shares as per the terms of allotment. 

Series C CCPS: 

During the year, 2,500,525 Series B CCPS have been compulsorily converted into 42,829 Equity Shares as per the terms of 
allotment. 

Capitalised terms not defined herein but used above are as defined in the respec�ve agreements. 
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Annual Report 2021-2022

(a)  Term Loans from Banks  

 Secured   862,831                      307,521 

 Repayable over 27-66 months (Previous Year 30-42 months) with
  interest rate of 9.86 % (Previous Year interest - 12.25%)

 Secured against:

 1) Specific Trade Receivables and specific ATMs, UPS, 
  Site Interiors & other Merchandise, Air condi�oners, 
  VSAT and e-surveillance equipment

 2) Lien marked against specific fixed deposits

 3) Personal Guarantee of Promoters

STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FY 2021-2022

ELECTRONIC PAYMENT AND SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72300MH2011PTC222535

Notes forming part of Financial Statements

Note 4 : Reserves and surplus Amount in INR ‘000s

 (a)  Securi�es Premium Account   

  Opening balance  2,427,737                   2,427,737 

  Add/(Less): Changes during the year                        24,576                                -   

  Closing balance                    2,452,313                   2,427,737 

 (b)  Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss   

  Opening balance                     (848,266)                    (853,624)

  Add/(Less): Profit/(Loss) for the year                      253,152                          5,358 

  Closing balance                     (595,114)                    (848,266)  

 (c)  Employee Stock Op�ons Scheme Outstanding   

  Opening balance                        50,185                        50,185 

  Add: Amount recorded on grants (refer note 33)                                -                                  -   

  Closing balance                         50,185                         50,185 

 (d) Capital Reserve   

  Opening balance                        13,377                        13,377 

  Add/(Less): Changes during the year                                -                                  -   

  Closing balance                         13,377                         13,377 

  Total                  1,920,761                    1,643,033 

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021   

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021   

Note 5 : Long-term borrowings

(a)  Term loans 

  Secured   

  (i)  From Banks  626,742                      124,150 

  (ii)  From Others                      333,275                      215,982

  Total                        960,017                       340,132 

 Note 5 (i) : Details of terms of repayment for the long-term borrowings and security provided in respect of the long-term 
borrowings:  
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(b)  Term Loans from Others

 Secured                      473,176                      309,934 

 Repayable over 36-66 months (Previous Year 36 months) with 
 interest rate of 9.26% (Previous Year interest - 9.25%)

 Secured against:

 1) Specific Trade receivables and specific ATM, UPS, 
  Site Interiors &  other Merchandise, Air condi�oners, 
  VSAT and e-surveillance equipment

 2)  Lien marked against specific fixed deposits

 3) Personal Guarantee of Promoters

    1,336,007 617,455 

 Less: Current Maturi�es of Term Loans from Banks, 
 Term Loan from Others and Finance Lease 
 Obliga�ons (Refer Note 10)                     (375,990)                    (277,323)

 Total Long-term borrowings                      960,017                       340,132 

 Note 5 (i) : Details of terms of repayment for the long-term borrowings and security provided in respect of the long-term 
borrowings:  

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021   

 Note 5.1: The Company has requested and availed for the moratorium on interest and principal payments on term loans for 
the period from April 2020 to August 2020 as per the no�fica�ons issued by RBI in the wake of the disrup�ons on 
account of COVID-19 pandemic.

Note 6 : Long-term provisions

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021   

 Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 26 (B))                  21,486                  16,607 

 Provision for Electricity (Refer Note 34)                      61,323                      63,576 

 Total  82,809                         80,183 

Note 7 : Trade Payables

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021   

 (a) Dues of Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer Note 7.1 below)                      150,193                        76,891 

 (b) Dues other than Micro and Small Enterprises                      420,586                      413,472 

  Total                       570,779                      490,363 
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(a)  Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the 
 end of the accoun�ng year 150,193 76,891 

(b) The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier as at 
 the end of the accoun�ng year (12,982) 2,558 

(c) The amount of interest paid in terms of Sec�on 16, along with 
 the amount of payment made to the supplier beyond the 
 appointed day during the year 776 -

(d) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay 
 in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the 
 appointed day during the year) but without adding the 
 interest specified under this Act  - -   

(e) The amount of interest accrued during the year and 
 remaining unpaid at the end of the respec�ve accoun�ng year - 2,558 

(f) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the 
 succeeding  year, un�l such date when the interest dues 
 as above are actually paid 776 12,982 

 Note 7.1:  Disclosures required under Sec�on 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021   

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined based on confirma�ons collected by the Company from such 
enterprises. Reversal of provision for interest on Micro and Small Enterprises payables is based on confirma�on of dues and 
waiver of interest as obtained from the respec�ve MSME creditors by the Company. This has been relied upon by the auditors.  

Note 7 : Trade payables 

Trade Payables ageing schedule

MSME 114,064 31,026 83 196 - 145,369

Others 344,490 39,634 115 - - 384,239 

Disputed Dues - MSME 2,875 1,949 - - - 4,824

Disputed Dues - Others - 30,297 6,050 - - 36,347

 Total 461,429 102,906 6,248 196 - 570,779 

Par�culars Outstanding for March 31, 2022

 Not Due <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
     3 years 

MSME 75,974 756 22 139 - 76,891

Others 369,041 8,443 2,884 3,104 - 383,472

Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - - -

Disputed Dues - Others - 30,000 - - - 30,000

 Total 445,015 39,199 2,906 3,243 - 490,363       

Par�culars Outstanding for March 31, 2021

 Not Due <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
     3 years 

Annual Report 2021-2022
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Overdra� from Banks

Secured against: 

1) Specific Trade Receivables and Specific ATM, UPS, Site Interiors   -                        112,607
 and  other Merchandise, Air condi�oners, VSAT and 
 e-surveillance equipment; 

2) Lien marked against specific fixed deposits; and/or 

3) Personal Guarantee of Promoters                              

Current maturi�es of long term debt (Refer Note 5(i))   

Secured:  

(a) Term loans from Banks 236,089 183,371 

(b) Term loans from Others 139,901 93,952 

Total 375,990 389,930 

Note 10 :  Short-term borrowings 

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021   

Security Deposits received  12,150 75,550 

Other Payables:   

Statutory remi�ances 21,171 15,028 

Payable to employees 654 8 

Payable to Franchisees - 376 

Advance from Customers 4,052 12,350 

Payable on Purchase of Property Plant and Equipment 143,516 20,003 

Other Payables 95,363 51,184 

Total 276,906 174,499 

 Note 8:  Other current liabili�es 

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021   

Provision for employee benefits :    

Provision for gratuity (Refer Note 26 (B))                             978                          2,624 

Provision for expenses                        40,310                        35,796 

Total                         41,288                        38,420 

Note 9 :  Short-term provisions 

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021   
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Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they 
were due for payment   

Unsecured                        51,831                        66,103 

 Less : - Provision for doub�ul Trade Receivables                       (17,665)                      (15,673)

Total (A)                         34,166                        50,430 

Others   

Unsecured                     278,232                      261,108 

Less : - Provision for doub�ul Trade Receivables                               -                                  -   

                     278,232                       261,108

Other Receivables                     358,819                      293,958 

Less : - Provision for Doub�ul Recoveries                    (257,286)                    (169,163)

                      101,533                       124,795 

 Total (B)                      379,765                      385,903 

 Total (A+B)                       413,931                      436,333 

Note 12: Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021   

Deferred Tax Assets 204,748 -

Total 204,748 -

 Unsecured & considered good:   

 Security Deposits                        39,783                        43,229 

 Prepaid expenses                          9,403                          4,042 

 Other statutory remi�ances recoverable                          2,369                          2,412 

 Balances with government authori�es:   

 - GST Input Tax Credit / Cenvat Credit receivable                             501                                -   

 - Tax (TDS) refund receivable                        85,434                        93,957 

 - Tax (TCS) refund receivable                               75                                -   

 Total                       137,565                       143,640 

 Note 13 :  Long-term loans and advances 

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021   

 Balances with Banks in fixed deposit accounts (In Earmarked Accounts)   

 - Balances held as security against borrowings                      132,539                      126,889 

 - Balances held as margin money against guarantees                      295,213                        74,031 

 Total                      427,752                      200,920 

Note 14: Other non-current assets 

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021   

 Note 15:  Trade receivables 

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021   
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Annual Report 2021-2022

Cash on hand                              26                               26 

Balance with banks  

In Current Accounts                       28,787                      263,396 

In Cash Credit and Overdra� Accounts (Debit Balance)                       65,247                                -   

 Total A - (Cash and Cash Equivalent as per AS-3)                        94,060                      263,422  

Cash in ATM                               -                            1,277 

Balance in Term Deposit  

Less than 12 Months                              64                        46,473 

More than 12 Months                               -                                  -   

 Total (B)                               64                        47,750 

 Total (A+B)                         94,124                       311,172 

Note 16 :  Cash and cash equivalents 

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021   

 Unsecured and considered good:   

 Capital Advances                             970                               10 

 Security Deposits                      135,417                      130,025 

 Loans and advances to related par�es (Refer Note 28)                               91                             852 

 Loans and advances to employees                             262                          1,185 

 Prepaid expenses                      133,061                        60,555 

 Balances with Government Authori�es:   

 - GST Input Tax Credit / Cenvat Credit receivable                      177,183                      100,706 

 - Tax (TDS) refund receivable                        41,708                                -   

 Advance to suppliers                        17,487                        41,548 

 Other receivables                          3,973                        29,553 

 Total                       510,152                      364,434 

Note 17 : Short-term loans and advances 

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021   

 Unbilled Revenue                      430,664                      299,428 

 Insurance Claims receivable                        50,251                        92,246 

 Less : - Provision for doub�ul recoveries  (12,156) (21,758)

 Insurance Claims receivable (Net)                        38,095                        70,488 

 Interest accrued on fixed deposits                          4,968                          1,028 

 Total                      473,727                      370,944 

 Note 18:  Other current assets 

Par�culars  As at 31st March, 2022  As at 31st March, 2021   
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 Interest on Borrowings                            81,080                            94,970 

 Interest on Finance Lease                                    -                                     89 

 Loan Processing Fees                              8,533                              9,154 

 Prepayment charges                                    -                                3,008 

 Interest on delayed payment of taxes                                   94                                 625 

 Total                            89,707                          107,846 

Income from ATM Services (net of GST)                       3,308,348                       3,289,926 

Income from Non-ATM Business (net of GST)                            37,335                            21,951 

Total                       3,345,683                        3,311,877 

 Note 19 :  Revenue from opera�ons 

Par�culars  For the year ended For the year ended
    31st March, 2022   31st March, 2021   

 Interest on Fixed Deposit                            24,315                            15,776 

 Interest on Income tax refund                                 521                              8,416 

 Interest on MSME wri�en back                            12,206                                    -   

 Provision for Con�ngencies - Electricity wri�en back (Refer Note 34)                            32,805                            92,960 

 Profit on Sale and Lease back                                    -                                   768 

 Provision For Doub�ul Recoveries (Insurance) - wri�en back                              9,602                                    -   

 Other Income                                   46                                 116 

 Total                            79,495                           118,036 

 Note 20:  Other Income 

Par�culars  For the year ended For the year ended
    31st March, 2022   31st March, 2021   

 Salary, wages & bonus                          310,954                          256,674 

 Contribu�on to Provident Fund (Refer Note 26(A))                              9,111                              9,142 

 Gratuity expense (Refer Note 26(B))                              4,187                              2,131 

 Staff welfare expenses                            14,739                            10,738 

 Total                          338,991                          278,685 

 Note 21: Employee Benefits Expense 

Par�culars  For the year ended For the year ended
    31st March, 2022   31st March, 2021   

 Note 22:  Finance Costs 

Par�culars  For the year ended For the year ended
    31st March, 2022   31st March, 2021   
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 Annual Maintenance Charges                          314,411                          292,368 

 Caretaker Charges                          150,532                          106,715 

 Consumables Charges                            26,490                            17,110 

 Cash Replenishment Charges                          673,942                          651,654 

 Management Service Charges                            15,187                            15,785 

 Site Electricity                           161,736                          162,615 

 EMV and Related Expenditure                                    -                              50,318 

 Site Housekeeping                             53,699                            51,385 

 Satellite (VSAT) Charges                            50,547                            44,600 

 Site Rent                           389,985                          345,722 

 Other Opera�ng Charges                            43,608                            13,202 

 UPS charges                          119,584                          125,060 

 Insurance Premium                             54,206                            77,076 

 Site Repairs Charges                          125,189                          105,090 

 Site Shi�ing Charges                            37,475                            27,263 

 Royalty Fee                                    -                                8,805 

 Sponsor Bank Charges                              2,591                              2,691 

 So�ware Management Charges                            32,360                            41,732 

 Franchise Fee                                   65                          265,535 

 NPCI Charges                                   63                              2,125 

 Total                       2,251,670                       2,406,851 

 Note 23: Opera�ng Expenses  

Par�culars  For the year ended For the year ended
    31st March, 2022  31st March, 2021   

 Note 24: Other General Expenses

Par�culars  For the year ended For the year ended
    31st March, 2022  31st March, 2021   

 Professional and Consultancy Charges                            24,315                            20,396 

 Rates and Taxes                                 181                                 453 

 Office and guest house rent Charges                               7,448                            17,230 

 Payments to the auditor (Refer Note 24 (i) below)                              6,502                              8,584 

 Bank Charges and Commission                               4,952                              5,104 

 Insurance Charges                              1,871                              1,183 

 Office Electricity                              1,088                              1,008 

 Repairs and Maintenance                              1,744                              1,666 

 Telecom Expenses                              1,472                              1,895 

 Travelling and Conveyance Expenses                            11,622                              9,145 

 Business Promo�on Expenses                              1,252                              1,236 

 Membership and Registra�on Charges                              1,971                              3,620 

 Office Expenses                              4,191                              3,759 

 Postage and Courier                                 582                                 306 

 Prin�ng and Sta�onery                              2,525                              1,192 

 Motor Car Expenses                                 260                                 383 

 Net loss on sale of Fixed Assets (net of recoveries)                            88,625                              1,653 

 Provision for Doub�ul Debts                              1,992                              2,407 
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 Provision for Doub�ul Recoveries (from Customers/Vendors)                            88,123                          107,514 

 Provision for Doub�ul Recoveries (Insurance)                                    -                              21,758 

 Bad Debts wri�en off                                 470                              3,479 

 Provision for Loss on Receivable from CRA wri�en back                                    -                            (47,511)

 Loss on Receivable from CRA Wri�en off                                    -                              47,511 

 Loss on Insurance Claim Receivable                            19,825                                    -   

 Provision for Diminu�on in value of Non-Current Investments                                    -                                2,627 

 Provision for Diminu�on in value of Non-Current Investments wri�en back (45,284)                                   -   

 Non-Current Investments wri�en off                            45,284                                    -   

 Car Lease Rentals (Refer Note 29(ii))                              3,811                              4,085 

 CSR Expense                                 376                              1,025 

 Interest on MSME                                    -                                2,558 

 So�ware Expenses                              7,828                            16,158 

 Other General Expenses - amounts wri�en off                            13,701                                    -   

 Miscellaneous Expenses                                   32                                 516 

 Total                          296,759                          240,940 

 Note 24: Other General Expenses (Con�nued)

Par�culars  For the year ended For the year ended
    31st March, 2022  31st March, 2021   

Amount spent in foreign currency                                 280                              3,701 

 Total                                 280                              3,701 

 Note 24: (ii)  Amounts paid in Foreign Currency

Par�culars  For the year ended For the year ended
    31st March, 2022   31st March, 2021   

(a)  To Statutory Auditor  

 For Audit                             3,350                              3,500 

 For Other Services  

 - Direct Tax                             1,000                              1,000 

 - Indirect Tax                             1,800                              3,720 

 - Consultancy charges                                250                                 300 

 Reimbursement of expenses                                102                                   64 

  Total                              6,502                              8,584 

 Note 24: (i)  Payments to the auditor comprise 

Par�culars  For the year ended For the year ended
    31st March, 2022   31st March, 2021   
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Amount required to be spent during the year                             1,078                                    -   

Amount of expenditure incurred up to prior years set off in the year                             1,025                                    -   

Amount of expenditure incurred during the year                                376                              1,025 

Total of previous years Excess carried forward / (Shor�all)                                323                              1,025 

Reason for shor�all NA NA

Nature of CSR ac�vi�es Healthcare Healthcare

Details of related party transac�ons NA NA

Note 24: (iii) CSR Expense 

Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure

Par�culars  For the year ended For the year ended
    31st March, 2022   31st March, 2021   

The Company meets the threshold criteria established under sec�on 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 for CSR ac�vi�es and 
was required to spend INR in '000s 1,078 on CSR ac�vi�es during the year under review.  

The excess CSR contribu�ons made up to the previous financial years of INR in '000s 1,025 shall be set off against the CSR 
obliga�on for the year under review. In addi�on, contribu�on of INR in '000s 376 was made towards CSR ac�vity in FY 2021-22, 
resul�ng in a total contribu�on of INR in '000s 1,401.

Thereby, excess contribu�on of INR in '000s 323 is available for set off against the requirement to spend on CSR ac�vity in the 
immediately succeeding three financial years, if applicable, subject to approval of the Board of Directors.

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt  

Service Tax                       46,849                        46,849 

MVAT                         1,286                          1,286 

Note 25:  Con�ngent Liabili�es and Commitments (to the extent not provided for): 

(a)  Con�ngent liabili�es

Par�culars  As at  31st March, 2022   As at 31st March, 2021   

Future cash ou�lows in respect of the above ma�ers is determinable only on receipt of final judgments / decisions pending at 
various forums / authori�es. 

Es�mated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital 
account and not accounted for                           43,402                              5,256 

(b)  Commitments

Par�culars  As at  31st March, 2022   As at 31st March, 2021   

 Note 26:  Employee Benefits    

(A) Defined Contribu�on Plan   

 The Company makes Provident Fund contribu�ons which is a defined contribu�on plan, for qualifying employees. Under 
the Scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits.   

 The Company recognised INR in ‘000s 9,111 (previous year INR in ‘000s 9,142) for Provident Fund contribu�ons in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.  

(B) Defined Benefit Plan

 The Company offers the following employee benefit schemes to its employees:   

Gratuity   

The Company is statutorily required to provide for gratuity, a defined benefit re�rement plan covering eligible employees. 
Gratuity plan provides for a lump sum payment to employees on re�rement, death, incapacita�on, termina�on of employment, 
of amounts that are based on salaries and tenure of the employees. The gratuity liability is not funded by the Company.  
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Present Liability of Gratuity has been accounted for on the basis of actuarial valua�on done by a professional Actuary and this has 
been relied upon by the auditors.

 I. Actuarial assump�ons:   

Salary Escala�on*   10.00 % p.a.   10.00 % p.a. 

Expected Return on Plan Assets** N/A N/A 

Discount Rate***   6.98 % p.a.   6.44 % p.a. 

A�ri�on Rate For service 2 years and   For service 2 years
  below 17.00% p.a.  and below 17.00% p.a.  

  For service 3 years to  For service 3 years to
  4 years 12.00% p.a.  4 years 12.00% p.a.

  For service 5 years and  For service 5 years and
  above 6.00% p.a. above 6.00% p.a. 

Mortality Rate  Indian Assured Lives  Indian Assured Lives
  Mortality 2012-14  Mortality (2006-08)
  (Urban) Ul�mate 

* The es�mate of future salary increases considered, in actuarial 
valua�on, takes into account the infla�on, seniority, promo�on, 
increments and other relevant factors such as supply and demand 
factors in employments markets.  

** Company does not have any earmarked investment for gratuity
liability; hence rate of return on plan asset is not applicable.  

*** The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of 
Government of India securi�es as at the date of the Balance Sheet 
for the es�mated term of the obliga�ons.  

Par�culars  For the year ended For the year ended
    31st March, 2022   31st March, 2021   

 II. Table showing change in Benefit Obliga�on:    

 Liability at the beginning of the year                             19,231                            18,250 

 Interest cost                              1,238                              1,102 

 Current service cost                              3,357                              3,608 

 Past service cost (vested benefits)                                    -                                      -   

 Benefits paid                               (954)                           (1,150)

 Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obliga�on                               (408)                           (2,580)

 Liability at the end of the year                             22,464                            19,230 

 III. Fair value of Plan Assets:                                    -                                      -   

 IV. Actual return on Plan Assets:                                    -                                      -   

 V. Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet   

Present value of benefit obliga�on                         (22,464)                         (19,230)

Net asset/ (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet                         (22,464)                          (19,230)

 VI. Percentage of each category of Plan assets to total fair value of Plan Assets   Not Applicable   Not Applicable 

 VII. Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss:   

Current service cost                             3,357                              3,608 

Interest cost                             1,238                              1,102 

Actuarial (gains)/losses                              (408)                           (2,580)

Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss                             4,187                              2,130 

Par�culars  For the year ended For the year ended
    31st March, 2022   31st March, 2021   
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VIII. Balance Sheet Reconcilia�on    

Opening net liability                           19,230                            18,250 

Benefits paid                              (954)                           (1,150)

Expense as above                              4,187                              2,130 

Net Liability / (Asset) recognised in Balance Sheet                           22,463                            19,230 

Short term liability                                978                              2,624 

Long term liability                           21,486                            16,607 

Net Liability / (Asset) recognised in Balance Sheet                           22,464                             19,231 

 IX. Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obliga�ons   

(i) Due to change in demographic assump�ons                                    7                                    -   

(ii) Due to change in financial assump�ons                           (1,170)                              (737)

(iii) Due to experience adjustment                                755                            (1,843)

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obliga�ons                              (408)                           (2,580)

Par�culars  For the year ended For the year ended
    31st March, 2022   31st March, 2021   

 II. Table showing change in Benefit Obliga�on:    

Note 27:  Segment Repor�ng  

As per the defini�ons of ‘business segment’ and ‘geographical segment’, contained in Accoun�ng Standard - 17 (AS-17) 
“Segment Repor�ng” specified under Sec�on 133 of the 2013 Act, the management is of the opinion that the Company’s 
opera�ons predominantly comprise of ATM infrastructure services within India. There is neither more than one reportable 
business segment nor more than one reportable geographical segment, and therefore, segment informa�on as per AS-17 is not 
required to be disclosed.  

Note 28: Related party transac�ons

 1. Details of related par�es:

Descrip�on of rela�onship  Names of related par�es 

(i)Wholly Owned Subsidiary (liquidated) Electronic Payment Australia PTY Ltd. 
 (liquidated on 6th September 2021) 

(ii) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) & their rela�ves / Directors  

Managing Director Mr. Mani Mamallan  

Director  Mr. Sanjay Kapoor 

President HR & Admin, Wife of Managing Director Mrs. Vidya Rani Mani Mamallan 

Brother of Managing Director Mr. Gangai Kondan Mani  
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2.  Details of related party transac�ons during the year ended 31st March, 2022 and outstanding balances as at 31st March, 
2022:

Par�culars  Wholly Owned  KMP & their rela�ves / 
 Subsidiary  Directors

Receiving of Services  

Remunera�on paid - 30,254 

 - (19,900)

Perquisites paid - 90 

 - (801)

Capital contribu�on made in ‘Electronic Payment Australia PTY Ltd  
Wholly Owned Subsidiary (liquidated). - -   

 (2,628) -    

Balance outstanding at the end of the year  

Investment in ‘Electronic Payment Australia PTY Ltd’ , 
Wholly Owned Subsidiary (liquidated).  - -   

 (45,284) -   

Loans & Advances - 91 

 - (852)

Notes:

1. Payment to KMP / Directors does not include reimbursement of expenses, employer’s contribu�on to PF and provision for 
gratuity.

2. Figures in bracket are for the previous year.    

As Lessee   

Opera�ng Lease Obliga�ons   

The Company has entered into opera�ng lease arrangement for Cars 
for official use. The leases are non-cancellable and are for a period 
of four years and may be renewed based on mutual agreement 
of the par�es.     

Future minimum lease payments   
not later than one year                               -                                  -   
later than one year and not later than five years                               -                                  -   
later than five years                               -                                  -   

  -                                  -   

Lease payments recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss  
- Car Rentals                             3,811                              4,085 

Par�culars  For the year ended For the year ended
    31st March, 2022   31st March, 2021   

Note 29: Details of leasing arrangements 
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Net Profit a�er tax for the year                         253,152                              5,358 

Net Profit a�er tax for the year for computa�on of Earnings per share 253,152                              5,358 

Weighted average number of equity shares (Basic)                         801,252                          699,800 

Weighted average number of equity shares (Diluted)                         863,160                          863,160 

Par value per share                                  10                                   10 

Earnings per share from con�nuing opera�ons - Basic                                316                                     8 

Earnings per share from con�nuing opera�ons - Diluted                                293                                     6 

Par�culars  For the year ended For the year ended
    31st March, 2022   31st March, 2021   

 Note 30:   Earnings per share 

Deferred Tax Asset  

Expenses Disallowed Under Income Tax Act                           85,843                            34,648 

Deprecia�on on Fixed Assets                         114,837                            98,489 

Carried forward Losses                              4,068                            63,498 

Total  204,748                          196,635 

Par�culars  For the year ended For the year ended
    31st March, 2022   31st March, 2021   

 Note 31:   Deferred Tax

Un�l the previous year, the Company had not recognised deferred tax asset as there was no reasonable / virtual certainty, 
supported by convincing evidence, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax asset 
can be realized, as per AS - 22, specified under the Sec�on 133 of the 2013 Act.

The Company has opted for lower rate of tax of 22% plus surcharge and cess as per the provisions of sec�on 115BAA from AY 
2021-22. Accordingly, the provisions of computa�on of book profit and MAT liability under sec�on 115JB are not applicable to 
the Company. 

Note 32: Deriva�ve Instrument and unhedged foreign currency exposures  

The Company did not have any deriva�ve instrument outstanding as at the year end. There are no balances denominated in the 
foreign currencies as at year end. 

 

Note 33: Employee Stock Op�on Scheme  

In the Extra Ordinary general mee�ng held on 12th August, 2014, the Shareholders of the Company approved the issue of 18,750 
equity op�ons under the Scheme �tled “Electronic Payment and Services - Employee Stock Op�on Plan 2014”(‘EPS-ESOP 2014’). 

The ESOP 2014 allows the issue of equity op�ons to the employees of the Company. Each op�on comprises one underlying equity 
share. As per the ESOP 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company can grant the equity op�ons to the employees deemed 
eligible. The exercise price of each op�on shall be Rs 10/- as defined in the ESOP 2014 scheme. The ves�ng periods are:

- in respect of 16,800 equity op�ons granted in September 2014 – 12 months from the date of grant

- in respect of 1,300 equity op�ons granted in January 2016 - 50% in the 24th month; 25% in the 37th month and 25% in the 49th 
month from the date of the grant.

The equity op�ons may be exercised by the eligible employees within 60 months from the date of each ves�ng.

As at 31st March, 2022, equity op�ons aggrega�ng to 17,788 (previous year 17,788) have vested to the eligible employees. The 
remaining 962 (previous year 962) equity op�ons have not been granted as of 31st March, 2022. Equity op�ons are eligible for 
exercise �ll 12th February, 2025.
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Exercisable op�ons at the beginning of the year:                           17,788                                   10 

Op�on outstanding at the beginning of the year:                                   -                                      -   

Granted during the year:                                   -                                      -   

Vested during the year:                                   -                                      -   

Exercised during the year:                                   -                                      -   

Forfeited during the year:                                   -                                      -   

Op�ons outstanding at the end of the year:                                   -                                      -   

Op�ons available for grant:                                 962                                    -   

Exercisable op�ons at the end of the year                           17,788                                   10 

The difference between the fair price of the equity share underlying the equity op�ons granted on the date of grant of the equity 
op�on and the exercise price of the equity op�on represen�ng Stock Compensa�on Expense is expensed over the ves�ng period.

Weighted average remaining contractual life for op�ons is NIL as at 31st March, 2021.  

Further, in the Extra Ordinary general mee�ng held on 19th January, 2016, the Shareholders of the Company approved the issue 
of 43,158 equity op�ons under the Scheme �tled “Electronic Payment and Services - Employee Stock Op�on Plan 2015” (‘EPS-
ESOP 2015’). The Company has not granted any of these equity op�ons to the employees of the Company.  

Par�culars (Scheme name: EPS-ESOP 2014) During the year ended 31st March, 2022 

 Op�ons   Weighted average exercise 
 (Numbers)  price per op�on (INR)

Note 34:  Provision  for  Con�ngencies  

The Company carries a Provision for Con�ngencies towards loss on account and electricity charges. The management es�mates 
the same to be se�led in the upcoming years. The movement of the said provision is summarised below:  

Note 35:  Foreign Currency Exposure  

The company does not have any unhedged/hedged exposure to Foreign Currency.  

Provision for electricity  

Opening balance                           63,576                          126,301 

Addi�on during the year                           30,552                            30,235 

Deduc�ons during the year                         (32,805)                         (92,960)

Closing balance (A)                           61,323                            63,576  

Provision for PF as per the Supreme Court order dated 28th February 2019  

Opening balance                                334                                 334 

Addi�on / (Deduc�ons) during the year                                   -                                      -   

Closing balance (B)                                334                                 334 

Closing Balance (A+B)                           61,657                            63,910 

Par�culars  For the year ended For the year ended
    31st March, 2022   31st March, 2021   
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Note 36:  Addi�onal regulatory informa�on required by Schedule III   

(i)  Details of benami property held   

 No proceedings have been ini�ated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami 
Transac�ons (Prohibi�on) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.   

(ii) Borrowing secured against current assets  

 The Company has working capital facili�es from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The revised quarterly 
returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with the bank are in agreement with the books of account.

(iii)  Wilful defaulter 

 The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial ins�tu�on or government or any government 
authority.

(iv) Rela�onship with struck off companies  

 The Company has no transac�ons with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956.

(v) Compliance with number of layers of companies   

 The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under Sec�on 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Companies (Restric�on on number of Layers) Rules, 2017, to the extent it is applicable to the Company.

(vi) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements   

 The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement that has been approved by the Competent Authority in 
terms of sec�ons 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus there is no accoun�ng impact on current or previous financial 
year.  

(vii) U�lisa�on of borrowed funds and share premium 

 a.  the Company has neither directly or indirectly lent or invested in other persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner 
whatsoever

 b. nor provided any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ul�mate beneficiaries  

  Also, the borrowings obtained by the Company from banks and financial ins�tu�ons have been applied for the purposes 
for which such loans were taken.  

(viii) Undisclosed income   

 There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.   

(ix) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency   

 The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

(x) Valua�on of PP&E, intangible asset and investment property   

 The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both 
during the current or previous year. 

(xi) Immovable property

 The Company does not own any immovable property and hence, there are no �tle deeds held in the name of the Company.

(xii) Registra�on of charges against assets of the Company.

 The Company has complied with the requirements for registra�on of charges created against the assets of the Company.  
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Note 37:  Ra�os

Par�culars Numerator Denominator For the year ended For the year ended Remarks
   31st March, 2022   31st March, 2021    

Current Ra�o Current Assets Current Liabili�es 1.18 1.36   

Debt-Equity Total Debt Shareholder’s  0.69 0.44 Addi�onal debt 
  Equity   availed during the 

current year.

Debt service  Earnings available 
coverage ra�o for debt service Debt service                            1.70                             1.12  Higher earnings 

available for lower 
debt service.

Return on equity  Net Profits a�er  Average  0.14                             0.00  Higher earnings for
ra�o taxes – Preference  Shareholder’s     the current year. 
 Dividend Equity 

Trade receivables  Net Sales Average Accounts      4.23                             4.68  
turnover ra�o  Receivable                        

Trade payables Net Purchases Average Trade                             4.24                             4.60  
turnover ra�o  Payables 

Net capital  Net Sales Working Capital                          14.74                             8.50  Improvement in
turnover ra�o      working capital.

Net profit ra�o Net Profit Net Sales                             0.08                             0.00  Higher earnings for 
the current year.

Return on capital  Earning before Capital Employed 0.04 0.04  
employed interest and  
 taxes 

Note 38:  Previous Year

Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's 
classifica�on / disclosure. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors   
  
  
  
Sanjay Kapoor  Mani Mamallan
Director  Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 03584520  DIN: 03584512
Date : 12  July, 2022  Date : 12  July, 2022
Place : Mumbai  Place : Mumbai
  
  
  
Pooja Panvelkar  Sudhanshu Soman
Company Secretary  Chief Financial Officer
Date : 12  July, 2022  Date : 12  July, 2022
Place : Mumbai  Place : Mumbai
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